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Directors and Senior Management
EEReEEEAE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr HUI Sai Chung, aged 61, is the Chairman and a co-founder of the Group. He
is responsible for formulating and overseeing the implementation of the Group's
business strategy. He is also responsible for the marketing and sales functions of the

Group. He has more than 38 years' experience in the plastics industry.

Mr HUI Kwok Kwong, aged 59, is the Deputy Chairman, Managing Director and a
co-founder of the Group. He is responsible for the overall operations and
administration of the Group. He has more than 38 years' experience in the plastics
industry and he was awarded the Associateship (Plastic Industry) by The Professional

Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries.

Dr WONG ChiYing, Anthony, aged 52, is the Vice Chairman of the Group. He is
in charge of R&D Centre of the Group, as well as developing business activities and
opportunities for the Group. Before joining the Group in the present capacity, Dr
Wong was an Associate Professor in the Department of Industrial and
Manufacturing Systems Engineering of The University of Hong Kong. He holds a
B.Tech (Hons) degree and a Ph.D degree in chemical engineering and is also a
Chartered Engineer, Chartered Scientist, a corporate member of The Institution of
Chemical Engineers and a member of The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers. He
had worked for two multinational chemical companies prior to taking up a lecturer

post with The University of Hong Kong in 1986.

Mr LAl Kam Wah, aged 57, is the Deputy Managing Director of the Group. Mr Lai
holds a Master of Arts degree and is a member of the Law Society of Hong Kong,
England and Wales and Australian Capital Territory. He has been practicing law for
over 24 years. He is also an Associate of the Hong Kong Institute of Arbitrators, a
Member of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators, a Fellow of the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors, Manager of two secondary schools in Hong Kong, and
Member of the Panel of Adjudicators of the Control of Obscene and Indecent

Articles Ordinance.

Madam LIU Sau Lai, aged 50, is responsible for personnel and office
administration of the Group. She joined the Group in 1977. Madam Liu is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. She has more than 23 years' experience in

plastic materials trading.
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Directors and Senior Management

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul, aged 57, is the sole proprietor of Paul W.C. Ho &
Company, Certified Public Accountants (Practising). He holds a Bachelor degree in
Social Sciences and is an associate member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales, United Kingdom and a fellow member of the

Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr FONG Pong Hing, aged 58, is a former Director of Cathay Pigments
Australasia Pty Ltd (“Cathay Pigments”) in Australia. He now serves as a consultant
of Cathay Pigments. Cathay Pigments specializes in the manufacture and trading of
pigments and food colours in the Australian market. Mr Fong obtained a Master of
Philosophy (Chemistry) degree from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1975.
Before he retired from DuPont China Limited in July 2003, he had spent most of his
career working for multinational chemicals and technology companies covering the
Hong Kong and the Greater China area with emphasis in engineering plastics

market.

Mr CHAN Dit Lung, aged 58, is the Managing Director of Wellknown Plastic
Material Ltd. He has more than 30 years' experience in plastic trading. He was
formerly a lecturer of Hong Kong Plastics Technology Centre in Polytechnic
University. He is now the President of Hong Kong Plastic Material Suppliers
Association, President of Hong Kong Plastics Recycling Association, Vice President of
The Professional Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries Limited, Director of
Hong Kong Plastics Technology Centre and Executive Vice President of Hong Kong
Brands Protection Alliance. He has also been awarded the Chief Executive's

Commendation for Community Service.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr NG Tat Ching, Ben, aged 53, is a Director and President of Ngai Hing
Engineering Plastic Materials Limited, Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic (Shanghai) Co.,
Ltd. and Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic (Hong Kong) Limited, and is responsible for
marketing and product development management of engineering plastic materials
for the Group. He holds a Bachelor degree in chemistry from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong. Mr Ng joined the Group in 1997 and has over 27 years'
experience in the plastics industry globally. Prior to joining the Group, Mr Ng has
held several key positions in various multinational companies for engineering plastic

materials sales and product marketing in Asia Pacific regions.
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Directors and Senior Management
EEReEEEAE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Contd)

Mr FONG Kwok Mo, aged 49, is the General Manager of Hong Kong colour
Technology Ltd.,, Dongguan Ngai Hing Plastic Materials Ltd. and Xiamen Ngai Hing
Hong Plastic Materials Co., Ltd.. He holds a certificate in textile technology from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic (The Hong Kong Polytechnic University's predecessor) and is
responsible for overseeing the operations of the Group in Dongguan and Xiamen,
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). He joined the Group in 1992 and has

27 years' experience in production management.

Mr NG Chi Ming, aged 43, is the Technology Development Director in Greater
China of the Group. He is responsible for developing of plastics colouration,
compounding technology and key accounts in the Greater China market. He holds a
higher diploma in textile chemistry from the Hong Kong Polytechnic (The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University's predecessor). He joined the Group in 1988 and left in
1995. He re-joined the Group in early 1998 and has over |9 years' experience in

plastic colouration and plastic injection moulding techniques.

Mr CHUNG Si Leung, Ricky, aged 50, is a Director and Vice President of Ngai
Hing Engineering Plastic Materials Limited, Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic (Shanghai)
Co., Ltd. and Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic (Hong Kong) Limited, and is responsible
for sales of engineering plastic materials for the Group. He holds a Bachelor degree
in chemistry from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He joined the Group in

1999 and has over 26 years' experience in the plastics industry.

Mr WONG Chi Hang, Eric, aged 37, is the General Manager of Ngai Hing Hong
Plastic Materials (Hong Kong) Limited and is responsible for the sales and marketing
in the Group's trading business. He holds a Bachelor degree in chemistry from The
University of Hong Kong and a Master degree in Business Administration from the
University of South Australia. He joined the Group in 1994 and has over |14 years'

experience in sales & marketing.
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Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
Mr CHAN Ka Ho, aged 35, is the Financial Controller and Company Secretary of

the Group. He holds a bachelor degree in Business Administration in Accounting and
Finance from The University of Hong Kong. He is a Fellow Member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is also a Chartered Financial Analyst
charterholder and a Certified Financial Risk Manager. He has over |2 years'
experience in auditing, finance and accounting and is responsible for the financial and

treasury management of the Group.

Mr LU Yu Ben, aged 68, is the General Manager of Tsing Tao Ngai Hing Plastic
Materials Co., Ltd. and Tsing Tao Ngai Hing Trading Co., Ltd. He holds a Bachelor
degree in Science from East China University of Science and Technology. He is an
admitted senior engineer by Chinese Government and he has researched and
studied for plastic materials in Japan. He has over 30 years experience in plastic
industry, particular in modified engineering plastics, compounded resins and plastic
materials testing. His research papers have been released in professional plastics

magazines in China.

Mr LEUNG Hoi Tin, John, aged 44, is the General Manager of NHH
Biodegradable Plastics Co,, Ltd. In the past years, he has been working in the area of

biodegradable plastics.

Mr NG Hok Lim, Steve, aged 53, is the General Manager of Shanghai Ngai Hing
Plastic Materials Co., Ltd, and is responsible for Sales, Marketing, Product
Development of Colour Masterbatches and Functional Masterbatches for plastic
industries in Shanghai and Eastern China Provinces plus the overall management of
the Shanghai Ngai Hing operations. He holds a Master Degree of Philosophy in
Organic Chemistry and a Bachelor degree in Chemistry from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong. Mr Ng joined the Group in August 2007. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr Ng has over 27 years' experience in business management and held several
senior positions in various Multinational Companies and a China Local Company for
sales and marketing of Specialties Chemicals plus New Product Development in Asia

Pacific Regions.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

| am pleased to announce the audited results of Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited
("the Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively “the Group”) for the year ended
30th June 2008. The Group recorded an audited consolidated turnover of
HK$1,580,225,000(2007: HK$1,405,507,000) and profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company of HK$24,193,000 (2007: HK$14,975,000). Earnings per
share for the year were HK6.64 cents (2007: HK4.16 cents). The Board of Directors
recommends the payment of a final dividend of HKI.0 cent (2007: HK1.0 cent) per
share. Together with the interim dividend of HKI.0 cent (2007: HKI.0 cent) per
share, the total dividend payment for the year under review is HK2.0 cents per share

(2007: HK2.0 cents).

BUSINESS REVIEW

In the year under review, the Group’s turnover rose 12% to HK$1,580,225,000 as
compared with last year, attributable mainly to the increased sales of plastics trading
and engineering plastic products. Its gross profit also increased by 5% year-on-year
to HK$140,549,000. Of the profit attributable to equity holders amounting to
HK$24,193,000, an over 60% increase compared to that of last year, approximately
HK$13,235,000 was gain from disposal of a subsidiary's PVC business to PolyOne
Corporation ("PolyOne”) completed in December 2007.The Group also recorded a

property revaluation gain of approximately HK$8,477,000.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

BUSINESS REVIEW (Contd)

[t was a challenging year for the industry with oil and material prices climbing to
record highs and the US economic downturn affecting consumption sentiment
around the world. In China, the implementation of the new labour contract law and
reduction in rebates in custom tariffs and preferential taxes pushing up production
costs and causing challenges for manufacturers to maintain profitability. However, by
applying effective cost control measures and raising product prices to balance the
effect due to cost increase, the Group managed to maintain gross profit margin at
an average of 9%. Counting on its years of experience, the management was able to
map out prudent yet flexible business strategies that navigated the Group across
difficult times, maintain its competitiveness and profitability and generate reasonable

returns for shareholders.

The three major businesses of the Group all reported stable growth in sales for the
year. Revenue from plastics trading business increased by 2% as compared with the
same period last year, accounting for about 60% of the Group's total turnover,
making the business the major revenue contributor of the Group. During the period
under review, revenue from domestic sales had most notable growth, more than
double that of the same period last year, mainly caused by the Mainland customers
becoming more demanding on quality, especially the quality of imported plastic
products after outbreaks of quality problems of China produced plastic products,
which favoured the Group's plastic trading business. Furthermore, the Group
managed to secure exclusive Greater China region distributorship of some of the
products of international brand name plastic manufacturers, which started to bring
satisfactory returns to the Group during the year. In addition, the Group gradually
increased the selling prices of its products to maintain gross profit margin at a

reasonable level to alleviate cost pressure from inflation.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Contd)

The two major manufacturing businesses managed proportionate growth in
turnover, accounting each for about 20% of the total turnover of the Group.
Engineering plastics manufacturing business's turnover is 9% higher than that of the
same period last year, with gross profit margin maintained high at 17%. Located close
to customers in Mainland China, the R&D center of the Group is able to tailor-make
products for them and contributed to the double-digit growth in revenue in Eastern
China for the review period. However, despite that colorants and compounded
plastic resins business recorded 24% growth in turnover, surge in raw material prices,
increased expenses resulting from cancellation of certain rebates in customs and
preferential taxes and the implementation of the new labour contract law causing

increase in cost, resulting in slight loss in these businesses.

During the year under review, the Group completed the disposal of certain assets of
its subsidiary to the Dongguan subsidiary of PolyOne, a listed company on the New
York Stock Exchange. The transaction generated a gain of HK$13,235,000 for the
Group. This transaction has benefited both parties as it allowed PolyOne to quicken
its entry into the China PVC market and the Group to focus resources on
developing its core plastics manufacturing and trading business. Subsequent to the

disposal, the Group is now holding 5% stake in the Dongguan subsidiary of PolyOne.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

PROSPECTS

Based on the current oil price trend, many analysts expect oil price to return to a
more reasonable level and related raw materials prices to follow. This will favour the
entire plastics industry. By reason thereof the Group holds a positive view in its
future business development for it anticipates increase in profitability due to

decrease in cost elements.

For the engineering plastics business, encouraged by positive outlook of sales in
Mainland China, the Group plans to set up in Shanghai its first engineering plastics
plant in Mainland China next year. Apart from enhancing its R&D capabilities and
reducing production and transportation expenses, the Group will also be close to its
customers hence able to offer tailor made products and services to designated
customers, in order to take advantage of the business opportunities offered by the

booming economies in Eastern China with Shanghai as its threshold.

The Group will continue to implement cost control measures to achieve greater
cost effectiveness to enhance overall operational efficiency. At the same time, the
Group will adopt aggressive sales and marketing strategies to broaden its customer

base especially among large enterprises.
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PROSPECTS (Cont1d)

The implementation of new customs regulations and labour contract law had
significantly driven up the Group's labour cost and tax expenses. To enhance
competitiveness and reduce costs, the Group, after detail study and consideration,
planned to relocate some of the production lines of the processing business in
Southern China to Hong Kong, which will benefit the long-term development of its
business. Furthermore, the Group will also monitor closely any change in policies in
both the Mainland China and Hong Kong, to ensure prompt adjustments to business

strategies will be made to adopt itself to the ever-changing market.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated cashflow and
banking facilities provided by its principal bankers. As at 30th June 2008, the Group has
available aggregate bank loan facilities of approximately HK$298,089,000, of which
approximately HK$203,423,000 have been utilised and were secured by corporate
guarantees issued by the Company and legal charges on certain leasehold land and
buildings and investment properties in the PRC and Hong Kong owned by the Group
(see notes 16, 17 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements). The Group's cash
and bank balances as at 30th June 2008 amounted to approximately HK$78,882,000.
The Group's gearing ratio as at 30th June 2008 was approximately 53%, based on the
total bank borrowings of approximately HK$208,479,000, together with obligations
under finance leases of approximately HK$5,507,000 and the shareholders' funds of
approximately HK$400,707,000.

Details of the Group's capital commitments and the Company's contingent liabilities
are disclosed in notes 33 and 3.1(d) to the consolidated financial statements

respectively.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group’s borrowings and cash balances are primarily denominated in Hong Kong
dollars, Renminbi and US dollars. The Group's purchases were principally denominated
in US dollars. The Group closely monitors currency fluctuations and manages its

exchange risk by entering into forward exchange contracts from time to time.

At 30th June 2008, the Group had outstanding commitments in respect of forward
contracts in order to manage the Group’s exposure in foreign currencies from its

operations as follows:

SN = B
AEBZEERBTHEFIEZRET  ARY
RET - REBENEBIENXTHE - A&
EARENERERRBIEARERYE MR
MERHEREXRBER

REBLETRZINERR - ARERLIVE
EHEN - R-TFENFRA=TH  RER
RN EERT

2008 2007

HK$°000 HK$'000

TER FHET

Sell/purchase HK dollars for US dollars HME/BABTUNEAN THEET 1,571,000 839,280

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 30th June 2008, the Group had approximately 820 full-time employees. The
Group’s emolument policies are formulated on the performance of individual
employees and are reviewed annually. The Group has an incentive scheme which is
geared to the profit of the Group and the performance of its employees, as an
incentive to motivate its employees to increase their contribution to the Group.The
Group also provides social or medical insurance coverage, and provident fund
scheme (as the case may be) to its employees depending on the location of such

employees.
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APPRECIATION

l, on behalf of the Board, would like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude
to the Group's suppliers, customers and shareholders for their unfailing support, my
fellow directors, executives and staff for their hard work in the past year. The Group
will, as always, with prudence used its best endeavour to strive for its long-term
development and the best interest of the shareholders aiming at attaining more

promising results in the coming vyear.

HUI Sai Chung

Chairman

Hong Kong, 3rd October 2008
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The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial statements for

the year ended 30th June 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities
of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial

statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by geographical segment is set

out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated income

statement on page 45.

The Directors have declared an interim dividend of HK1.0 cent per ordinary share,
totalling HK$3,692,000, which was paid on |0th April 2008.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HKI.0 cent per
ordinary share, totalling HK$3,692,000.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during the year are

set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group are set

out in note |6 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out in note 28 to

the consolidated financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
As at 30th June 2008, the reserves of the Company available for distribution,
comprising the contributed surplus and retained earnings, amounted to

approximately HK$66,304,000 (2007: HK$66,840,000).

Under The Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), a company may not
declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus, if there
are reasonable grounds for believing that (i) the company is, or would after the
payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; (i) the realisable value
of the company's assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities

and its issued share capital and share premium account.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-laws and
there was no restrictions against such rights under the laws of Bermuda, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing

shareholders.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last

five financial years is set out on page 138.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year. Neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the Company's

listed securities during the year.
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SHARE OPTIONS

On 5th December 2002, the Company has adopted a new share option scheme
(the "New Scheme”) and terminated the old share option scheme. Under the terms
of the New Scheme, the Directors may, at their discretion, invite Directors and
employees of the Group to take up options (the “Share Options”) to subscribe for

shares in the Company subject to the terms and conditions stipulated therein.

Details of the New Scheme are as follows:

(i)  Purpose
The New Scheme is designed to give Directors and employees of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries an equity interest in the Company in order
to enhance long-term shareholder value. The granting of Share Options will
also help the Company attract and motivate individuals with experience and

ability and to reward individuals for past and future performance.

(i)  Qualifying participants

Any employee including any Director of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

(iii)  Maximum number of shares

The maximum number of shares, which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding Share Options granted and yet to be exercised under the New
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed
30% of the total number of shares in issue from time to time. No Share
Option may be granted under the new Scheme if such limit is exceeded. The
total number of shares available for issue under the New Scheme as at the
date of the annual report is 36,920,000, which is 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company as of that date.

The maximum entitlement for any one qualifying participant is that the total
number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the Share Options
granted to each qualifying participant under the New Scheme and any other
option schemes (including exercised and outstanding Share Options) in any

[2-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares in issue.
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SHARE OPTIONS (Contd)

(v)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Option period

In respect of any particular Share Option, such period the Board of Directors
may in its absolute discretion determine, save that such period shall not expire
more than 10 years from the date on which a Share Option is granted and

accepted by the grantee.

Amount payable on application or acceptance

An offer of the grant of an option shall remain open for acceptance for a
period of 28 days from the date of grant. An offer of the grant of the Share
Option shall be deemed to have been accepted and to have taken effect when
a letter comprising acceptance of the Share Option duly signed by the grantee

is received by the Company.

Exercise price

The exercise price in respect of any particular option shall be (i) the closing
price of the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited’s (the “Stock Exchange") daily quotations sheet on the date of
grant, (i) the average price of the shares for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant or (iii) the nominal value of the share (whichever

is the greater).

The remaining life of the New Scheme

The Board of Directors shall be entitled at any time within 10 years between
5th December 2002 and 4th December 2012 to offer the grant of an option
to any qualifying participants.

BRE®

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

BEREHR

REMBERRENS  EFGANME
BHBBREETZIR - EXHREFH
MBHREFTEATF o MR B HRE
RRZBBER L T ARA AR AER
MEEBE 2 BT AR -

REERBEABRBNZEH
FHBEBREBOBR L BHEF -+
NBZBEANAEER - ERRAE
BhARALARBRABREZ R
A REBREZBOEREACE
2L

HIEE

REMRTERENS  BBETTE
RII=F285% : (IRKLBAHER
BEEBARSMBRAE ([BRFA])
MM E - (EERE AR AER
HRAZFHYRH BRI ZEE -

(vii) #1H8 IR T B 2 R R Hi IR

EEeRAERN S _F+-_AABZE
—E-ZF+-ANB+FERERRT
MEBRZ2EERLBIRE -



Report of the Directors

EEERE
SHARE OPTIONS (Contd) BREE
Details of the movements of Share Options granted under the New Scheme during BETBRESRLE 2 BRENR_STN\F
the year and outstanding as at 30th June 2008 are as follows: NA=THRFERZEHMT
Number of Share Options
BREZROHE
Beginning Granted Exercised
Date of Exercise Exercise of during during End of
grant period price the year the year the year the year
RHAH ATESR e £4 ERik ERiTE X
Executive Directors
YrEs
Mr HUI Sai Chung nd May 2003 nd May 2004 to HK$0.82 1,000,000 — = 1,000,000
ATt & Z%%= Ist May 2009 082 %7
EAZA “ZTMERACAE
“EENFRA-A
nd May 2003 Ind May 2005 to HK$0.82 1,000,000 — — 1,000,000
ZE3CF Ist May 2009 082 %7
hAZH “EERFRACAZR
“2ENELA-A
Ind May 2003 nd May 2006 to HK$0.82 1,000,000 — — 1,000,000
—%%= Ist May 2009 082 %7
EAZA “ZTFLACAE
“ZENFRA-A
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong 2nd May 2003 2nd May 2004 to HK$0.82 1,000,000 o = 1,000,000
FEREE Z%%= Ist May 2009 082 %7
EAZA “ZTMFRACAE
“EENFRA-A
nd May 2003 Ind May 2005 to HK$0.82 1,000,000 — — 1,000,000
ZE3CE Ist May 2009 082 %7
5AZA “ZRRFRACAZR
“2ENELA-A
Ind May 2003 nd May 2006 to HK$0.82 1,000,000 — — 1,000,000
—%%= Ist May 2009 082 %7
EAZH “ZTFRACAE

“FIAFTA-R
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SHARE OPTIONS (Cont'd) BEREE
Number of Share Options
BREZRHO%E
Beginning Granted Exercised
Date of Exercise Exercise of during during End of
grant period price the year the year the year the year
R4 RH T EAR e £ FRRH Frf X
Executive Directors (Contd)
7€z (9
DrWONG ChiYing, nd May 2003 2nd May 2004 to HK$0.82 1,000,000 — — 1,000,000
Anthony ZE%=% Ist May 2009 0827
ETERL HAZA “EEMFRACAE
“2ENFRA-R
nd May 2003 Ind May 2005 to HK$0.82 1,000,000 = = 1,000,000
g 2 Ist May 2009 082 T
hAZH “EZTRFNACAE
“EENFRA-A
nd May 2003 Ind May 2006 to HK$0.82 1,000,000 — —= 1,000,000
—TT= Ist May 2009 082 %7
EAZA “EEFRACAE
“E2EAFRA-A
Mr LA Kam Wah nd May 2003 Ind May 2004 to HK$0.82 1,000,000 — — 1,000,000
RRERE “EECE Ist May 2009 08287
5A=A “ZEWFRACAE
“2ENFRA-R
nd May 2003 Ind May 2005 to HK$0.82 1,000,000 — = 1,000,000
“B%=- Ist May 2009 0827
hAZH “EZTRFNACAE
“EENFRA-A
nd May 2003 Ind May 2006 to HK$0.82 1,000,000 — — 1,000,000
—TE= Ist May 2009 082 %7
EAZA “EEFRACAE

“E2EAFRA-A
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Number of Share Options
BREZRHO%E
Beginning Granted Exercised
Date of Exercise Exercise of during during End of
grant period price the year the year the year the year
R4 AH AR TR £4 FRRH Erff £X
Executive Directors (Contd)
478z (9
Madam LIU Sau Lai Ind May 2003 Ind May 2004 to HK$0.82 1,000,000 — = 1,000,000
BABNT Z%%= Ist May 2009 082 T
5A=A “ZEMFRACAZE
“ZENERA-A
Ind May 2003 Ind May 2005 to HK$0.82 1,000,000 = = 1,000,000
g Ist May 2009 082 %7
hAZH “FTRFIACAE
“2RAFRA-A
Ind May 2003 Ind May 2006 to HK$0.82 1,000,000 — = 1,000,000
—TE= Ist May 2009 082 %7
EAZA “ZTERACAE
“EEAFRA-A
Other continuous 30th April 2003 30th April 2004 to HK$0.82 500,000 — = 500,000
contract employees Z%%= 29th April 2009 08287
BEMANER mA=tH “TIMFEA=TRE
“EENEMAZTHA
30th April 2003 30th April 2005 to HK$0.82 500,000 = - 500,000
ZE3CF 29th April 2009 082 %7
MA=1A “ZEREMA=TRE
“ETAFMA-TAA
30th April 2003 30th April 2006 to HK$0.82 500,000 — = 500,000
Z%%= 29th April 2009 082 %7
MA=+A “2/ ENA=TRE

“EENENAZT A
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SHARE OPTIONS (Contd) BEREE
Number of Share Options
BREZRHO%E
Beginning Granted Exercised
Date of Exercise Exercise of during during End of
grant period price the year the year the year the year
RABH EHR TR £4 FRRH Erff £X
Other continuous
contract employees (Cont'd)
BRENANES (B)
2nd May 2003 nd May 2004 to HK30.82 2,000,000 = = 2,000,000
“E%=E Ist May 2009 0827
5A=A “EEMFRACAE
“ZEASRA-A
Ind May 2003 Ind May 2005 to HK$0.82 2,000,000 = = 2,000,000
“E%CE Ist May 2009 08287
TAZA “ZThERACAE
“E2EAFRA-A
2nd May 2003 2nd May 2006 to HK$0.82 2,000,000 — (200,000 1,800,000
ZTE-F Ist May 2009 082 7T
EA-H “ETERIAZAE
“ERA\FRA-H
2lst October 2lst October HK$0.65 1,000,000 = (1,000,000 =
2004 2005 to 20th 065 2T
—TIME October 2010
+A=t-A “ETRFTA-T-HE
“E-RE+A-TA
2lst October 2lst October HK$0.65 1,000,000 — (1,000,000 =
2004 2006 to 20th 065 BT
“TTME October 2010
+A=+-8 “EERFTACT-RE
“F-BRE+A-TA
2lst October 2lst October HK$0.65 1,000,000 — (1,000,000)° =
2004 2007 to 20th 065 BT
k2 JukS October 2010

TR=t+-H “EELFTA-+-BE
“F-2F+A-1H



Report of the Directors

EETHRE
SHARE OPTIONS (Cont'd) ERE®E
Number of Share Options
FREZROBE
Beginning Granted Exercised
Date of Exercise Exercise of during during End of
grant period price the year the year the year the year
RHEH A{TEHR e £4 Eni ERfrE £X
Other continuous
contract employees (Cont'd)
ERHSOER (B)
3th February I3th February 2009 to HK$0.78 — 500,000' — 500,000
2008 |2th February 2014 078 T
k& Y2 “EENEZATZHE
ZAt=H “3-mE-A+=A
I3th February I3th February 2010 to HK$0.78 — 500,000' — 500,000
2008 |2th February 2014 078 T
“FENF “F-FF-_A+=RE
—“Rt=H “F-EF-A+-H
I3th February I3th February201 | to HK$0.78 — 500,000' — 500,000
2008 | 2th February 2014 078 %7
“FENF “F--%-AtZRE
ZAt=H “3-mE-A+=A
25,500,000 1,500,000 (3200,000) 23,800,000

At the date before the options were granted, |2th February 2008, the market
value per share was HK$0.72.

2 Exercise date was 4th February 2008. At the date before the options were

exercised, the market value per share was HK$0.80.

} Exercise date was 23rd January 2008. At the date before the options were

exercised, the market value per share was HK$1.23.
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SHARE OPTIONS (Contd)

The value of the options granted during the year is HK$4 15,000, based on the
Binomial Option Pricing Model. The significant inputs into the model were share
price of HK$0.72 at the grant date, exercise price shown above, standard deviation
of expected share price returns of 66%, expected life of options of 6 years,
expected dividend paid out of 6% and annual risk-free interest rate of 1.99%. The
volatility measured at the standard deviation of expected share price returns is
based on the 6-year historical share price movement of the Company prior to the
option grant date. The Binomial Option Pricing Model is developed to estimate the
fair value of share options. The fair values calculated are inherently subjective and
uncertain due to the assumptions made and the limitations of the model used. The
value of an option varies with different variables of certain subjective assumptions.
Any change in variables so adopted may materially affect the estimation of the fair

value of an option.

SUBSIDIARIES
Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2008 are set out in

note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

INTEREST CAPITALISED
No interest has been capitalised by the Group during the year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year were:

Mr HUI Sai Chung (Chairman)

Mr HUI Kwok Kwong (Deputy Chairman and Managing Director)
DrWONG Chi Ying, Anthony

Mr LAl Kam Wah

Madam LIU Sau Lai

Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul '

Mr FONG Pong Hing '

Mr CHAN Dit Lung '

" Independent Non-executive Directors

All of the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the

Company's Bye-laws.
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DIRECTORS (Contd)
Mr HUI Sai Chung, Madam LIU Sau Lai and Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul retire by rotation
in accordance with clause 87 of the Company's Bye-laws and, being eligible, offer

themselves for re-election.

The Independent Non-executive Directors have been appointed for a term subject

to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

The fundamental policy of the Group’s remuneration and incentive scheme is to link
total compensation for senior management with the achievement of annual and
long-term performance goals. By providing total compensation at competitive
industry levels, the Group seeks to attract, motivate and retain key executives
essential to its long-term success. Senior management incentive scheme includes an
equity component that is designed to align the long-term interest of management
with those of shareholders. The remuneration package comprises of annual

directorship fees, salaries, discretionary bonuses and incentive scheme.

The Independent Non-executive Directors are compensated with the aim to fairly
represent their efforts and time dedicated to the Board and various committee

meetings. The remuneration package represents annual directorship fees.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting has a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries,
which is not determinable by the employer within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group's business to which the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,

subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND / OR
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 30th June 2008, the interest and short positions of each Director and chief
executive in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFQO™)), as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”) contained in the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) were

as follows:

(i)  ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company at 30th June 2008

EERBRTRAEBRAAAREEM
HBEEREARES CBER/TAR

RZZENFAA=Z+H  RALAEEERR
BITRABRARRZEEMEEEE (EER
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(i) R-BENFAF=1+HRALAGERE
B0.108 T2 EER

Number of shares of the Company beneficially held

BERBAZEARARGEE
Personal Corporate Family Other
Name of Directors interests interests interests interests
EEnA (5PN £ EEER ZERER Hftlg i
Mr HUI Sai Chung FIA% A Long positions #Ex 14,971,600 202,721,500(a) — —
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong ~ FFBI %4 Long positions B2 15,642,400  198,803,500(b) — —
Madam LIU Sau Lai BHEEZLT  Long positions 1,323,000 = — (c)




DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND / OR
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (Contd)

(i) derivative to ordinary shares of HK$0./0 each in the Company

Name of Directors

Report of the Directors

ESRE
G

(%)

EEERE

BITBRAEBRARAREEM
BRARESZ < BEER/ARA

(i) XRAAEKEE.10ETZEBRITE

IR

Unlisted Share Options

(physically settled equity derivatives)

as at 30th June 2008
FEmEBRE
(BEREZREMETIR)

EEnA R-ZEENFXA=1H
Mr HUI Sai Chung it IRk & Long positions &% 3,000,000
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong AR A Long positions &% 3,000,000
Dr WONG Chi Ying, Anthony mFEEL Long positions # &% 3,000,000
Mr LAl Kam Wah RBESLSE Long positions # % 3,000,000
Madam LIU Sau Lai BEBL T Long positions ¥ & 3,000,000
Notes: Bt 5T -

@)

196,721,500 of these shares are held by Good Benefit Limited (“Good Benefit"), a
company in which Ever Win Limited (“Ever Win") holds a 45.1% interest (note
()). In addition, 6,000,000 shares are held by Ever Win directly.

50,000 ordinary shares of one Canadian dollar each in Ever Win are held by a
trustee on behalf of a discretionary trust, the discretionary objects of which
include Mr HUI Sai Chung and his family members. Mr HUI Sai Chung and his
spouse further own 30,834 and 5 class A non-convertible redeemable preferred

shares of no par value in Ever Win respectively.

(a)

Z &R 2196,721,500/% 73 B Good
Benefit Limited([Good Benefit]) %
% ° Ever Win Limited ([Ever Win])
HGood Benefit A Z W+ HE —#
g (M E(c)) = t5h - 6,000,0000% i 17
FEver WinE##H -

Ever WinSFREE 1ML 2 T@BH
50,0000kl —BEFRARK—IEZ#RE
TESHE  RERETERZXHEA
BEFHREERERKAE « FHE
FTERERES S AHAEver Win AR
EEETA] N AL BB 530,834
R 5R%
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND / OR
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (Contd)

(b) 196,721,500 of these shares are held by Good Benefit, a company in which
Evergrow Company Limited (“Evergrow”) holds a 45.1% interest (note (c)). In

addition, 2,082,000 shares are held by Evergrow directly.

50,000 ordinary shares of one Canadian dollar each in Evergrow are held by a
trustee on behalf of a discretionary trust, the discretionary objects of which
include Mr HUI Kwok Kwong and his family members. Mr HUI Kwok Kwong
further owns 30,823 class A non-convertible redeemable preferred shares of no

par value in Evergrow.

()  The beneficial interests of the Directors in the share capital of Good Benefit,
which held 196,721,500 shares of the Company as at 30th June 2008, are as

follows:

EERBRTRAEBRAAAREEM
HBREERARES 2 BER/FKXA

(%)

(c)

ZER M P 2196,721,5000 T @
Good Benefitif A& © Evergrow Company
Limited ([Evergrow]) 5% Good Benefit
B z0+ 87— &%
(BFE(c)) o Lsh + 2,082,0000 B 15
EvergrowE&Z# A °

Evergrow® R EE 1IN T 2 & @ i 1
50,000\ —AEFEARK-—EE2#E
TEEHE  ZREGTELZIZEA
BRETEAEERERRKE - FFE*
S BB Evergrow AREEERA] K
TR O B 50 AR 30,8230 -

EHEGood Benefit(R-ZEENE
NAZTHEEARRAF96,721,5008
BAD) AR 2 BEHERSINT -

Number of Percentage

Name of Directors shares of holding
Bxps RPEE BRAES L
Mr HUI Sai Chung Elugoete 4510 45.1%
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong RN EE 4510 45.1%
Madam LIU Sau Lai BEELL 80 0.8%
Others HAh 900 9.0%
10,000 100.0%




DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND / OR
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (Contd)

As at 30th June 2008, the following Directors owned interests in non-voting
deferred shares in Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Materials Limited, which are subject to
an option granted to Ngai Hing (International) Company Limited to acquire the

said non-voting deferred shares.

Report of the Directors
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EERBETRAERAAAHEEM
HBREERARES 2BER/FKXA

(%)

RZZETNFAA=+H " THESE
BREEBRHARLABRZERL
R #Es% - M2 A2 R T Ngai
Hing (International) Company Limited
AREFMERERELRS 2 BR

o
Number of non-voting
deferred shares held
FEEREREZROEA
Personal Other

Name of Directors interests Interests
BEEpE BARES HitiiE s
Mr HUI Sai Chung Eauesiea 200,000 50,000(i)
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong B 200,000 50,000(ii)
Notes: ng o

(i)  These shares are held by Ever Win.
(i) These shares are held by Evergrow.

Save as disclosed above and other than certain nominee shares in the subsidiaries of
the Company held by certain Directors of the Company in trust for the Group as at
30th June 2008, none of the Directors and chief executives have any beneficial or
non-beneficial interests in the share capital of the Company and associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

) ZERDAEEver Wint A ©
(i)  ZEMAEvergrowlF A ©

BREXHRBERARRETESTUEENAR
AEBRFAARAETHBARNREARD
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND / OR
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (Contd)

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Options” above:

(a) at no time during the year was the Company, its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors or chief
executives of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of

shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate; and

(b) none of the Directors, chief executives, their spouses or children under the age
of 18 had been granted any right to subscribe for shares in or debentures of

the Company, or exercised any such right.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

At 30th June 2008, the register of substantial shareholders required to be kept
under Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO shows that the Company had not been
notified of any substantial shareholders’ interests and short positions, being 5% or
more of the Company’s issued share capital, other than those of the Directors and

chief executives as disclosed above.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed during

the vyear.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases for the year attributable to the Group's major

suppliers are as follows:

The largest supplier 18%

Five largest suppliers combined 54%

The aggregate percentage of sales attributable to the Group’s five largest customers
is less than 30% of the Group's total sales for the year ended 30th June 2008 and

therefore no additional disclosure with regard to the major customers is made.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders (which to the
knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company's share capital) had

an interest in the major suppliers noted above.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee provides an important link between the Board of Directors
and the Company's auditor in matters coming within the scope of the group audit. It
also reviews the effectiveness of the external audit and of internal controls and risk
evaluation. The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul, Mr FONG Pong Hing and Mr CHAN Dit
Lung. The Audit Committee has reviewed with management the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed internal controls and
financial reporting matters including a review of the annual financial statements for

the year ended 30th June 2008 with the Directors.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the total issued share capital of the
Company was held by the public as at the date of this report.
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AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retires

and, being eligible, offer itself for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Hui Sai Chung

Chairman

Hong Kong, 3rd October 2008
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The Company is committed to the establishment of good corporate governance
practices and procedures which serve as an important element of risk management
throughout the growth and expansion of the Company. The Company emphasises
on maintaining and carrying out sound, solid and effective corporate governance

principles and structures.

The Company has complied with the applicable code provisions of the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (the "Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules throughout year ended 30th June 2008, except for deviation of the

code provisions A.2.1 and A4.| of the Code as mentioned below.

According to the code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief executive
officer should be separate and should not be performed by the same individual. Up
to the date of this annual report, the Board has not appointed an individual to the
post of chief executive officer. The roles of the chief executive officer have been
performed collectively by all the executive directors, including the chairman, of the
Company. The Board considers that this arrangement allows contributions from all
executive directors with different expertise and is beneficial to the continuity of the
Company's policies and strategies. Going forward, the Board will periodically review
the effectiveness of this arrangement and considers appointing an individual to chief

executive officer when it thinks appropriate.

Code Provision A4.| stipulates that non-executive directors should be appointed
for a specific term, subject to re-election. The Company's independent non-executive
directors were not appointed for a specific term but is subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company in

accordance with the Company's bye-laws.

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules as its own code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transaction. The
Company has made specific enquiries of all directors and all directors confirmed
they have complied with the required standard of dealings set out therein during the

year.
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The Company's Board has a balance of skills and experience and a balanced ARANEFGARYENRONER  mE
composition of executive and non-executive directors. The Board conducts meetings HHTESEFRTEENEAMRESE -
on a regular basis and on an ad-hoc basis, as required by business needs. During the ExelTHIEEBTERUNSgEELA
year, the Board held a total of five regular board meetings and fifteen ad-hoc board BOeR RERN EFaABTRARES
meetings. The composition of the Board and attendance of the Directors are set out ExgeaRkTIANIESeeR - E58
below: ERRESHREFEOT
No. of
No. of ad-hoc
regular meetings
Attendants meetings Attendance # 5 Attendance
HEE plEgRy HERB gFRB  HERE
Mr HUI Sai Chung (Chairman) FEEE (FE) 5 5 5 5
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong Bcibitea 5 5 15 15
(Deputy Chairman and Managing Director) (BlEEHREEHLE)
Dr WONG Chi Ying, Anthony BFEEL 5 5 5 5
Mr LAl Kam Wah REBESLE 5 5 15 15
Madam LIU Sau Lai BEBXL 5 4 15 13
Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul fESEE 5 5 15 !
Mr FONG Pong Hing 7B E 5 4 5 |
Mr CHAN Dit Lung BRIk & 5 4 15 0

The balanced board composition ensured strong independence exists across the
Board and has met the recommended practice under the Code to have at least
one-third of its members comprising independent non-executive directors. At least
one of the independent non-executive directors has appropriate professional
qualifications, accounting and financial management expertise. The biographies of the
Directors are set out on pages 4 to 5 to the annual report, which demonstrates a

diversity of skills, expertise, experience and qualifications.
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The Independent Non-executive Directors have been appointed for a term subject

to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from the three
independent non-executive directors in according with Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Board has assessed their independence and concluded that all the
independent non-executive directors are independent within the definition of the

Listing Rules.

*  To establish the strategic direction for the development of the Company and

set the objectives of the management;

*  To approve annual budgets, major funding proposal and investment proposals;

*  To decide on matters such as annual and interim results, major transactions,

directors appointment, and dividend and accounting policies; and

*  To oversee the processes for evaluating the adequacy of internal controls, risk

management, financial reporting and compliance.

The Members of the Board are responsible for preparing the financial statements of
the Company and of the Group.The financial statements are prepared on a going
concern basis and give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and of the Group as at 30th June 2008, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for
the year then ended. In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 30th
June 2008, the Members of the Board have selected appropriate accounting policies
and, apart from those new and amended accounting policies as disclosed in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements ended 30th June 2008, have applied
them consistently with previous financial periods. Judgments and estimates have
been made that are prudent and reasonable.The reporting responsibilities of the

external auditor are set out on pages 43 to 44.
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The Board has not set up a nomination committee. The nomination of new directors
has been delegated to the Chairman and other executive directors. They review
regularly the need to appoint additional directors with appropriate professional
knowledge and industry experience. The Board will then consider the appointment

of the candidates nominated by them as directors of the Company.

The Company has formulated written terms of reference for the Audit Committee
in accordance with the requirements of the Stock Exchange. The Audit Committee
consists of all independent non-executive directors. The composition and attendance

record of the Audit Committee are as follows:

Attendants

HEE

Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman) MEERE (ZESFE)

Mr FONG Pong Hing 7B E
Mr CHAN Dit Lung BRikEELE

The principal duties of the Audit Committee are to ensure the objectivity and
credibility of financial reporting and internal control procedures as well as to

maintain an appropriate relationship with the external auditors of the Company.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are aligned with the
recommendations set out in “A Guide for Effective Audit Committees” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Given below are the main

duties of the Audit Committee:

(a) to consider the appointment of the external auditor and any questions of

resignation or dismissal;

(b) to discuss with the external auditor before the audit commences, the nature

and scope of the audit;
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(c) to review the half-year and annual financial statements before submission to

the Board, focusing particularly on:

(i) any changes in accounting policies and practices;

(i) major judgmental areas;

(iii)  significant adjustments resulting from the audit;

(iv) the going concern assumption;

(v) compliance with accounting standards;

(vi) compliance with Stock Exchange and legal requirements; and

(d) to discuss problems and reservations arising from the audits, and any matters

the external auditor may wish to discuss (in the absence of management

where necessary).

For the year ended 30th June 2008, the Audit Committee met three times during

the year, in particular, to review and discuss the followings:

*  the auditing and financial reporting matters;

*  the appointment of external auditors;

*  the establishment of internal control system; and

. reviewed the interim results and the annual financial statements.

Each member of the Audit Committee has unrestricted access to the Auditors and

all senior staff of the Group.
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The Company has formulated written terms of reference for the Remuneration
Committee which stated clearly its authorities and duties in accordance with the
requirements of the Stock Exchange. The remuneration committee consists of three
independent non-executive directors and an executive director. The composition

and attendance record of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:

Attendants

HEE

Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul (Chairman) AEExRE (FE)

Mr FONG Pong Hing REE Y
Mr CHAN Dit Lung BRikEELE
Mr HUI Sai Chung vty

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for ensuring formal and transparent
procedures for developing remuneration policies and overseeing the remuneration
packages of the executive Directors and senior management. It takes into
consideration on factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities of Directors and senior management. The
Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year to assess the performance and
review the annual salaries and bonus of the senior executives. The remuneration

committee held one meeting during the year ended 30th June 2008.
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Number of meetings Attendance
attended/Total percentage
HESERE BRI HE R
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11 100%

11 100%
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During the year, the nature of the audit and non-audit services provided by
PricewaterhouseCoopers, the auditor of the Company, and the relevant fee paid and

payable by the Company for such services are as follows:

RER - AREZBEEZRKE G ER
PR 2 B NIRRT - MARARELE
BRECNREMSZAEBERDT -

HK$
BT
Audit services for the Group RAEERME 2 EZRE 1,289,000
Non-audit services including: FEZRBEE

— review of interim results —FHPHESR 236,000
— taxation services for the Group —RASERE ZHEBERS 505,000

— agreed upon procedures on the Group's —AEERERELHZETER
annual results announcement 11,000
Total wE 2,041,000
The Board is responsible for the Group's system of internal controls and for ExEFHELE E’]W*BEFT A RmE A

reviewing its effectiveness.The management of the Company has established a set of
comprehensive policies, standards and procedures in areas of operational, financial
and risk controls for safeguarding assets against unauthorised use or disposition; for
maintaining proper accounting records; and for ensuring the reliability of financial
information to achieve a satisfactory level of assurance against the likelihood of the

occurrence of fraud and errors.

For the purpose of further enhancing the internal control systems, the Company has
engaged an external consultant to carry out an on-going project to conduct
independent internal review and to evaluate major operations of the Group. The
Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the system of internal control of the

Company and its subsidiaries with no material issues noted.
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The Group uses several formal channels to ensure fair disclosure and
comprehensive and transparent reporting of its performance and activities. Annual
and interim reports are printed and sent to all shareholders. Press releases are
posted on the Company's corporate website http://www.nhh.com.hk. The Company's
website provides email address, postal address, fax number and telephone number
by which enquiries may be put to the Company. Constantly being updated in a
timely manner, the website also contains additional information on the Group's

business activities.

The Company encourages its shareholders to attend general meetings to ensure a

high level of accountability and to stay informed of the Group's strategy and goals.

The Company keeps shareholders informed of the procedure for voting by poll in all
circulars to shareholders which are from time to time despatched to shareholders
together with notices of general meetings of the Company. The Company has taken
steps to ensure compliance with the requirements about voting by poll contained in
the Listing Rules and the constitutional documents of the Company. The Board
attends the Annual General Meetings to answer shareholders’ questions. Poll results
are advertised in newspapers on the following day and are posted on the

Company's corporate website shortly after the meetings.
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PRICEWATERHOUSE( COPERS

R

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Ngai Hing Hong Company
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on
pages 45 to |37, which comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets as at
30th June 2008, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

notes.

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the true and
fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making

accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any

other person for the contents of this report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
22/F, Prince's Building
Central, Hong Kong
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from

material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Directors, as well as

evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 30th June 2008 and of the
Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance

with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 3rd October 2008
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For the year ended 30th June 2008 BZ=FENF/RA=TALFE

2008 2007
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
i =T TR FET
Turnover EXE 5 1,580,225 1,405,507
Cost of sales HER AR 8 (1,439,676) (1,272,038)
Gross profit EM 140,549 133,469
Other income H Al A 6 2,899 1,563
Other gains, net Hth e — F1E 7 27,018 9,276
Distribution costs Gl =IO 8 (42,584) (41,086)
Administrative expenses 1TH > i 8 (85,085) (74,105)
Operating profit =gl 42,797 29,117
Finance income gL 397 542
Finance costs BBER (11,221 (9,157)
Finance costs — net B ER—-%#E 9 (10,824) (8,615)
Profit before taxation B B4 A1 4 A 31,973 20,502
Taxation M 10 (1,294) (7,459)
Profit for the year AR 5 30,679 13,043
Attributable to: N
Equity holders of the Company NG S Il 24,193 14,975
Minority interests DR R R 6,486 (1932)
30,679 13,043
Dividends g 12 7,384 72200
Earnings per share for profit attributable to AEERAIRRE
equity holders of the Company during the year  JE{f & | 2 & iz &
(expressed in HK cent per share) (AR ALF)
~ Basic —&EK 3 6.64 416
- Diluted — g I3 6.64 4.16

The notes on pages 52 to 137 are an integral part of these consolidated financial 5T 137ENHE A A K REmREY

statements.

o

=



As at 30th June 2008 R=FZEN\FAA=1H

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Leasehold land and land use rights
Investment properties

Intangible assets

Available-for-sale financial assets

Deposits for acquisition of an investment property

Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and bills receivables

Other receivables, prepayments and deposits
Tax recoverable

Derivative financial instruments

Cash and cash equivalents

Assets held for sale

Total assets

EQUITY

Capital and reserves attributable
to the Company’s equity holders
Share capital

Share premium

Other reserves

Retained earnings

Proposed dividends

Minority interests

Total equity

Cﬁ@}

=

> ESN
R

e N/
By

BE
FRYEE

nE - BERRE
HEL R ERE
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Note
B aE

16
17
18
19
20

31

22

25
26

24

28
28
29
29
29

2008
HK$°000
TER

106,700
16,446
24,720

3,200
2,000
8,125
5618

166,809

204,362
293,799
16,429
2,876
1,274
78,882

597,622

597,622

764,431

36,920
62,466
51,024
246,605
3,692

400,707
17,397

418,104

2007
HK$'000
THET

103,313
14,756
17,400

6,250
527

142,246

152,802
316316
15,058
3418
1,575
59,217

548,386
21,417

569,803

712,049

36,000
57,611
24,614
229,796
3,600

351,621
7,444

359,065



As at 30th June 2008 R=ZZN\FAA=1H

2008 2007
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
(3 TER TET
LIABILITIES B
Non-current liabilities ERBAE
Long-term bank loans REIBITER 30 6,523 —
Obligations under finance leases MEHERMT 30 2,743 5536
Deferred tax liabilities ELEMIEAR 31 2,680 3,343
11,946 8,879
Current liabilities mEBAE
Trade payables BHRNK 27 104,207 128,888
Other payables and deposits received HihENRREWRET & 10,324 26,884
Accruals BiRER 11,726 12,624
Long-term bank loans — current portion REABTER - NEHHBH 30 2,000 —
Obligations under finance leases — REMERET - AEHH
current portion 30 2,764 5711
Short-term borrowings RHEE 30 199,956 164,461
Derivative financial instruments fTEEmIA 25 352 603
Tax payable A 3,052 4,934
334,381 344,105
Total liabilities BERE 346,327 352,984
Total equity and liabilities BERLER 764,431 712,049
Net current assets FRBEE 263,241 225,698
Total assets less current liabilities BEERTBAR 430,050 367,944
On behalf of the Board REEEE
HUI Sai Chung HUI Kwok Kwong
Chairman Deputy Chairman and Managing Director
EY BT EHREFELE
it i R

The notes on pages 52 to 137 are an integral part of these consolidated financial F2E13TEMNM T AGE VB HRRNEED

statements. 7 o



As at 30th June 2008 R=FZEN\FAA=1H

2008 2007
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
BiE TER FHET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets #/ﬁ@}é%
Investments in subsidiaries WEBARIRE 2 62,711 62,711
Current assets TEEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEULHT B A RIAR 21 109,669 105,051
Other receivables HAth & e 3% 123 109
Cash and cash equivalents RekfeEH 26 |45 75
109,937 105,235
Total assets BEE 172,648 167,946
EQUITY s
Capital and reserves attributable DA R A
to the Company's shareholders B A K
Share capital R 28 36,920 36,000
Share premium R B 28 62,466 57,611
Other reserves Hib & 29 68,986 69,532
Retained earnings R & H 29 101 729
Proposed dividends BERE 29 3,692 3,600
Total equity wiEn 172,165 167,472
LIABILITIES BfE
Current liabilities mEEaE
Other payables Hofth 13X 483 474
Total equity and liabilities wEZREE 172,648 167,946
Net current assets MENEE 109,454 104,76 |
Total assets less current liabilities BEERTBEE 172,165 167,472
On behalf of the Board REEFE
HUI Sai Chung HUI Kwok Kwong
Chairman Deputy Chairman and Managing Director
FE FlEEREFBICT
Bt BE FTELR

The notes on pages 52 to 137 are an integral part of these consolidated financial ERR137TEHM A BEA MR EED
statements. 5o



At It July 2007
Currency translation differences

Net income recognised directly
in equity
Profit for the year

Total recognised income

Capital contribution by a
minority shareholder

Loss written back on disposal
of a business

Issuance of new shares

(note 28)

Employees share options scheme:

— proceeds from issuance of shares
upon exercise of share options
(note 28)

- value of employee services

- exercise of share options

2006/2007 final dividend paid
2007/2008 interim dividend paid
Dividend paid to minority

shareholders

At 30th June 2008

The notes on pages 52 to 137 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.

R-ERLF+A-A
EXER
ERERERENUE
KE R

KAKE
HERRINER
HEXH ERRD
ik (Wit 2e)

FEUCHEE
-RBRERT
RipmER

R-FENFARZTH

Share

capital
k&

HK$ 000
TEL

36,000

600

300

90

36920

For the year ended 30th June 2008 & ZE =%

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ARRREES S
Other reserves
Rt
Share Exchange
Share  option  Capital Revaluation fluctuation ~ Retained  Minority
premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  earnings interests
BRE EX 58
RxaE &% EX@E EMEE KIRE RERN RRER
HK$000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS000  HK$OOO  HK$000  HK$'000
TEn  TEn TEn TEr TEr TEr  TERL
57611 7,021 408 515070 23339 7444
— — — — 269 — 265
— — — — 269 - 265
— — — — - UI% 6,486
— — — — 2695 2419 6751
— — — — — — 4
— — — — — — 4368
2400 = — — - - -
1,794 — — — — — —
— 15 — — — — —
66! (661) — — — — —
— — — — — (3600 —
— — — — - (369 —
— — — — — - (L1%)
4855 (546) — — - (129) 3202
62466 6475 408 5 4206 250297 17397
FER2ETANMEREAMBHRENE

{/'\ °

Total

aE
HK 000
TiEL

359,065

2721

72l
30,679

57,900

4388

3,000

2114
15

(3600)
(369)

(1,190)
139

418104

L5



For the year ended 30th June 2008 BZ=ZFZENNENA=1THILF

At Tst July 2006

Currency translation differences
Revaluation of property, plant
and equipment on transfer

to investment properties

Net income/(expenses) recognised
directly in equity

Profit/(loss) for the year
Total recognised incomel(expenses)

Acquisition of additional
interests in a subsidiary
Employees share options scheme:
- Forfeiture of share options
- value of employee services
2005/2006 final dividend paid
200612007 interim dividend paid

At 30th June 2007

The notes on pages 52 to |37 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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R-ZFAFLA-H

ERZE
REERENRRENR L
UEN e

ERERARENUE/ ()

“EENERRHRE
“ERLFETHARE

R-FRLEAAZTA

Share

capital

Rx
HK$ 000
TERL

36,000

36,000

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

Share

premium

BAiE
HK 000
TiET

57611

57,611

ARARREEH
Other reserves
AR
Share
option  Capital Revaluation
reserve  reserve  reserve
RRE
ffh EXEE ERRRE
HK$' 000  HK$' 000  HK$000
TEr  TEn  TEm
1177 408 —
— — 2115
— — 2115
— — 2115
(859 — —
103 — —
(756) — -
7,021 408 2115

1/'\ °

Exchange
fluctuation

reserve
Ed
Rk
HK$'000
TiEn
9926

5144

5144

5144

15,070

Retained

earnings

RERA
HK$000
TEL

124761

14975

14975

859

(3,600)
(3,600)

(6:341)

1333%

Minority
interests
o) |
BEY §
HK$000
TEL

1,764

(115

(115
(193)

(.047)

Q1)

Q)

7444

Total

3
HKS 000
TiEL

348,248

5029

2115

7,144
13,043

20,187

Q27)

103
(3600)
(3600)

(9370)

359,065

F2E13TENMFAGAVBRRNEED



Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations
Hong Kong profits tax paid
PRC income tax paid

Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of leasehold land and land use rights
Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of an investment property

Payment for intangible assets
Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets
Increase in deposits for acquisition
of an investment property
Proceeds from disposal of a business

Net cash (used in)/generated
from investing activities

Cash flow from financing activities
Issuance of new shares
New bank loans
Repayment of bank loans
Increase in trust receipt loans
Repayment of capital element of finance leases
Interest element of finance lease payments
Capital contribution by a minority shareholder
Dividends paid to minority shareholders
Dividends paid
Interest received
Interest paid on bank borrowings

Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

The notes on pages 52 to 137 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.

For the year ended 30th June 2008 B{Z=FTNFNA=1THILFE

2008
Note HK$'000
(o TER
REXBIBREN
REXBMEEZRS £y) 9,389
BEHEBFEH (3.114)
E &P BT EH (5,274)
REXBMEE 2 FRE 1,001
REEXBZB 2R
BEME  BERRE (7,797)
BEHEE TR T AR (1,330)
HEME  BERZBHRER
32 93
HEREMEMBFK 1,600
BERVEAE (2,000)
BEAHRNENKEE (2,000)
WEREMEZ
BEEm (1,875)
HEEBAEH 32 3,725
REEBH (£R) /
EEZER® (9,584)
BREEB RSN
BITHIR 5,114
FRRITER 57,465
BREFITER (46,204)
EREER.2Em 23,733
BEMEHEEARBH (5,740)
BEREN B0 (409)
PERFFAER 4
X FLBRRZBE (1,190)
SARN s, (7,292)
B8 397
ERRITEENE (10,812)
REEBMESE/ (£R) 2FHe 15,066
ReRReBRIEM 6,483
FNzRERBEER
68,471
INEHRRErHE 3,928
FERZBReRA2ER 26 78,882
F52Z2137EHN T RES

{3

2007
HK$'000
TRT

29,754
(7.918)
(1,870)

19,966

(10632)

25

(6.250)
20,600

3,743

40,660
(50,155)
13,069
(6,668)
(810)

(7,200)
54
(8,347)

(18909)
4,800
62,187
| 484

68,471

PBEHRROERD



Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) are principally engaged in the manufacturing and
trading of plastic materials, pigments, colorants, compounded plastic resins and

engineering plastic products.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The
address of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton

HMI |, Bermuda.

The Company's shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of Hong
Kong dollars (HK$'000), unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial
statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 3rd
October 2008.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have been

consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS"). The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
investment properties, available-for-sale financial assets, and financial
assets and financial liabilities (including derivative instruments) at fair

value through profit or loss, which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in

note 4.
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2.1

Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

2.1 HEREZE(E)

The following standard, amendment and interpretations to existing BE-_ZTZN\ERA=THLHE
standards are mandatory for the financial year ended 30th June 2008: B ATER ERIZEBITRZE
2 lER

Hong Kong Accounting Standard (“HKAS”) |
(Amendment)
BB EAE15 (BFTX)

HKFRS 7
E/%ﬁjﬁk#&m’ ‘J 7’%

Hong Kong International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee
("HK(IFRIC)")-Int 10

B (ERMBREREZES)
—2EE10%

HK(IFRIC)-Int |1
EE (ERMBREREZES)
—-REENR

Presentation of financial statements — capital disclosures

HBBROZT  BARE

Financial instruments: disclosures

BHEIA: BE

Interim financial reporting and impairment

RSB RE KR E

HKFRS 2 — Group and treasury share transactions
ERRBHREENE2R - REARBERHZS

The adoption of above standard, amendment and interpretations to WA E2R - ERIZ BT RARE
existing standards did not have any significant financial impact to the HASEYEREAYE -

Group.

Certain comparatives have been reclassified to conform to the current ATHBAFRABUNEAFE
year's presentation. ZE2HH -

The following new standard, amendments to standards and R B2 3 ER -« ERIZ &
interpretations have been issued but are not effective and have not been RBBYREMBRARBIRAEMN -
early adopted. The Group anticipates that the adoption of these standard, AEEMRGERMAZERED  EHZ
amendments to standards and interpretations would not result in a B kRBETERARE %5

significant impact on the results and financial position of the Group. RIBMRAEEERTE



2.1

Basis of preparation (Contd)

HKAS | (Revised)

ERGEAE 15 (BET)

HKAS 23 (Amendment)

BERMBREERF23% (B

HKFRS 8

BERMGwEER

HK(IFRIC)-Int 12

B (ERRERE

—REF12%

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13

B (BB RS

- REF13%

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14

B (BRMBERS

—RBE145%

HK(FRIC)-Int 15

B (BERMBERE

—REF15%

HK(FRIC)-Int 16

B (BERMBERE

-2 BE167

| 55 85%

nEBZEE)

2EBZEg)

#wEZ88)

2BZEE)

2BZEE)

BEN)

2.1 HEREZE(E)
Presentation of Financial Statements (effective for annual periods beginning

on or after Ist January 2009)
MBBEN2F (B _TTNF-A-HRZRNFRERELER)

Borrowing Costs (effective for annual periods beginning on or after st
January 2009)
BERA(H-BRNE—A—BR2RNFRBHELER)

Operating Segments (effective for annual periods beginning on or after |st
January 2009)
ZENH (M -_FTTNF-A-RIAZENEFRAFMELN)

Service Concession Arrangements (effective for annual periods beginning on
or after Ist January 2008)
REENELHE (M -_TTN\F-A-AHZERNFRAMELER)

Customer Loyalty Programmes (effective for annual periods beginning on or
after Ist July 2008)
%}E/u\ﬂr—u-l_glj(m—? SNFLA— HWZ&WE#&%F?%E»&)

HKAS 19 - The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding

Requirements and their interaction (effective for annual periods beginning

on or after Ist January 2008)

BRGHENE19R - RTEBNEE LR ZREESERREMEEER
(MZFEN\F-A-BRZBNFREBELER)

Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate (effective for annual periods

beginning on or after |st January 2009)
FHERRRBZ (B_TENF-A-BRZENFRBFER)

Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation (effective for annual

periods beginning on or after |st October 2008)
BIRBRELBENEH (R -FTTNFTA-BRZBRNFRARER)



2.1

Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

2.1 HEREZE(E)

In addition, the following amendments to standards have also been issued Beoh - AT ERHET 2B BT R
but are not effective and have not been early adopted by the Group. B3 AEEYRERERS -

HKAS 27 (Revised)

ERGTERE27F (KEFT)

HKAS 32 and HKAS | (Amendments)

EE G ERE2RRE1H (BFTX)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

ERM B REERF2R (BFTX)

HKFRS 3 (Revised)
ERUBREERFE3R (KEFT)

Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements (effective from annual
periods beginning on or after st July 2009)
GERBUMBHRER (R _TENFLA-RFIZRFRABER

Puttable Financial Instruments and

Obligations arising on Liquidation (effective from [st January 2009)
BRAELNAENENBIAREE R _TTNAF-A-RELW)

Share-based Payment - Vesting Condition and Cancellations (effective from
Ist January 2009)
A XA FREB G REHE (M- TTAF-A—-REER)

Business Combinations (effective from Ist July 2009)

ek (Bm_TENFLA-BEEW

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the impact of these AEEERRTHELEEEER
changes. The expected impact is still being assessed in detail by WTE  EEENNFHATEES

management.



2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of

the Company and all of its subsidiaries made up to 30th June.

(a)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are those entities over which the Group has the power
to govern the financial and operating policies generally
accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the voting
rights. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are
currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing

whether the Group controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date

that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary in the
consolidated financial statements to ensure consistency with the

policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company's balance sheet the investments in subsidiaries are
stated at cost less provision for impairment losses (note 2.8). The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the

basis of dividends received and receivable.
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2.2 Consolidation (Cont'd)

(b)

Transactions with minority interests

The Group applies a policy of treating transactions with minority
interests as transactions with parties external to the Group.
Disposals to minority interests result in gains and losses for the
Group that are recorded in the consolidated income statement.
Purchases from minority interests result in goodwill, being the
difference between any consideration paid and the relevant share

acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary.

2.3 Segment reporting

2.4

A business segment is a group of assets and operations engaged in

providing products or services that are subject to risks and returns that

are different from those of other business segments. A geographical

segment is engaged in providing products or services within a particular

economic environment that are subject to risks and returns that are

different from those of segments operating in other economic

environments.

Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of the Group's
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollar ("HK$"), which is the Company’s functional and

presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in

foreign currencies are recognised in the income statement.
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2.4 Foreign currency translation (Cont'd)

(9

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group’s entities (none of
which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a
functional currency different from the presentation currency are

translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are

translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the dates of the

transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate

component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation
of the net investment in foreign operations and of borrowings are
taken to shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation is partially
disposed of or sold, exchange differences that were recorded in
equity are recognised in the income statement as part of the gain

or loss on sale.
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2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the

acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance are expensed in the income statement during

the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their costs to their residual values over

their estimated useful lives, as follows:

- Buildings 2% - 2.5%
-~ Leasehold improvement 20%
- Machinery and equipment 12.5%
—  Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 20%
- Motor vehicles 20%
-~ Tools and moulds 20%

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated on the same basis as

described above.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each balance sheet date. An asset’s carrying amount is
written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (note
2.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds
with the carrying amount of the relevant assets and are recognised in the

income statement.

If an owner-occupied property becomes an investment property carried
at fair value, it is reclassified as investment property. The difference
between the fair value and the carrying amount of the property at the
date of transfer is recognised in revaluation reserve. Subsequent changes
in the fair value of the investment property are recognised in the income

statement as part of other gains/losses.
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2.6

Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group, is classified
as investment property. Investment property comprises land held under
operating leases and buildings held under finance leases. Land held under
operating leases are classified and accounted for as investment property
when the rest of the definition of investment property is met. The

operating lease is accounted for as if it were a finance lease.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related
transaction costs. After initial recognition, investment property is carried
at fair value, representing open market value determined annually by
independent external professional valuers. Fair value is determined based
on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the
nature, location or condition of the specific asset. Changes in fair values

are recorded in the income statement as part of other gains/losses.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the

income statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Gain or loss on disposal of an investment property is determined by
comparing the proceeds and the carrying amount of the investment

property and is recognised in the income statement.
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2.7

2.8

Intangible assets

Technical know-how comprises the acquired rights to use certain
technologies for the manufacture of plastic products. Acquired technical
know-how is capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use. These costs are amortised over their estimated useful lives

of five years.

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or have not yet been available for
use are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of

the impairment at each reporting date.
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2.9 Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair

value through profit or loss, loans and receivables and available-for-sale.

The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets

were acquired. Management determines the classification of its financial

assets at initial recognition and re-evaluates this designation at every

reporting date.

(9)

(b)

(9

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial
assets held for trading and those designated at fair value through
profit or loss at inception. A financial asset is classified in this
category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the
short term. Derivatives are classified as held for trading unless they
are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are classified as
current assets if they are either held for trading or are expected to

be realised within 12 months of the balance sheet date.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater
than 12 months after the balance sheet date. They are classified as
non-current assets. Loans and receivables include trade and other

receivables and bank balances.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated in this category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current assets unless
management intends to dispose of the investment within 12 months

of the balance sheet date.
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2.9 Financial assets (Cont'd)

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the
trade-date — the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell
the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction
costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially
recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the
income statement. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair
value. Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the

effective interest method, less any provision for impairment.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are presented in the income
statement within “other gains/losses” in the period in which they arise.
Dividend income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
is recognised in the income statement as part of other income when the

Group's right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in a foreign
currency and classified as available-for-sale are analysed between
translation differences resulting from changes in amortised cost of the
security and other changes in the carrying amount of the security. The
translation differences on monetary security are recognised in the
income statement; translation differences on non-monetary securities are
recognised in equity. Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-

monetary securities classified as available-for-sale are recognised in equity.
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2.9 Financial assets (Cont'd)

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired, the
accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in equity are included in
the income statement as gains and losses from investment securities.
Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated using the effective
interest method is recognised in the income statement. Dividends on
available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in the income

statement when the Group’s right to receive payment is established.

The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid prices. If
the market for a financial asset is not active (and for unlisted securities),
the Group establishes fair value by using valuation techniques. These
include the use of recent arm'’s length transactions, reference to other
instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis,
and option pricing models making maximum use of market inputs and

relying as little as possible on entity-specific inputs.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. In the case of equity securities classified as available-for-sale, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its
cost is considered as an indicator that the securities are impaired. If any
such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative
loss — measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset
previously recognised in the income statement — is removed from equity
and recognised in the income statement. Impairment losses recognised in
the income statement on equity instruments are not reversed through
the income statement. Impairment testing of receivables is described in

note 2.12.

29 HBEE (&)

ENBRRAHNENEFRE LR
RER  ERERERN R AT
EREGERGERIIEREZEFHN
BE - I HERATAZKRER
REE R YIGRIE 2 BRI - &
W RERRBEAEMBA -

ARBREZATERES 2 EE
BHE - EHBEEZ THUTE
R(BRELDBEME)  ££E
BIRBHET AT EATE B
SETRATRARS - AR
8 - HRRLRE SR
SREAS - %A B BUIER

BERORRERZHENE -

W oo

H

I
il

/

I]]]

AREREHERTRREFER
SEBERAEEMEEER AN
BEEDRME - B HEERRE
FNTERESFETHREEAR
X BeREREFELBETR
B BAHLENBEEFERAM
ZEBRE  NEREEHERHE
T(EW%W$E*F“$@Z
B WHBRE R AR R R
ZM%%FW@%%@%%%*%
R ERARERZBRAIAR
EBETFERRRRER - BYT
KR E RS E M 2. 1290 58 o

B



2.10 Derivative financial instruments

2.11

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at their fair
values. The method of recognising the resulting gains or losses depends
on whether the derivative is designated and qualified as a hedging

instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged.

As the Group's derivative financial instruments do not qualify for hedge
accounting, changes in the fair value of these derivative financial
instruments are recognised immediately in the income statement within

other gains/losses.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is determined using the weighted average method. The cost of finished
goods comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and
related production overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It
excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling

expenses.
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2.12

2.13

2.14

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of
trade and other receivables is established when there is objective
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due
according to the original terms of the receivables. The amount of the
provision is the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the assets is reduced
through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the income statement within administrative expenses.
When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited against administrative

expenses in the income statement.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand and deposits held at call

with banks.

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for sale

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as assets held for
sale if their carrying amount is recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through a continuing use. This condition is
regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the assets (or
disposal groups) is available for immediate sale in its present condition.
Non-current assets (or disposal groups) classified as held for sale are
measured at the lower of the assets’ (or disposal groups’) previous

carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.
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2.15

2.16

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group are
classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument. Financial liabilities (including trade payables) are initially
measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method. An equity instrument is any contract
that does not meet the definition of financial liability and evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its

liabilities.

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs, net of tax,
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in

equity as a deduction from the proceeds.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in the income statement over the period

of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12

months after the balance sheet date.

2.17 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which

they are incurred.
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2.18 Current and deferred income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in the
countries where the Company and its subsidiaries operate and generate
taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate on

the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises
from initial recognition of an asset or a liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax

liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the

temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, except where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that

the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.19 Employee benefits

(a)  Pension obligations

The Group participates in several defined contribution retirement
benefit schemes. A defined contribution scheme is a pension plan
under which the Group pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension plans on a mandatory, contractual or
voluntary basis. The Group has no further legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions once the contributions have

been paid.

The Group participates in the mandatory provident fund scheme
(the “MPF Scheme") in Hong Kong. Under the MPF Scheme, each of
the Group and its relevant employees makes monthly contributions
to the scheme at 5% of the employee’s relevant income, as defined
in the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance. Both the
Group's and the employee’s contributions are subjected to a cap of
HK$ 1,000 per month. The contributions are fully and immediately

vested in the employees.

The Group also contributes to certain defined contribution
schemes for its employees in The People’s Republic of China
("PRC"). Contributions are made by the Group on a monthly basis
to these state-sponsored retirement plans based on a certain
percentage of the relevant income of the relevant employees. The
Group has no further obligations for the actual payment of
pensions beyond its contributions. The state-sponsored retirement
plans are responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to

retired employees.

Contributions made are recongnised as employee benefit expenses
when they are due and are not reduced by contribution forfeited
by those relevant employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting
fully in the contributions. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an
asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future

payments is available.
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2.19 Employee benefits (Cont'd)

(b)

()

(d)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leaves are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liabilities for annual leaves as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date. Employee entitlements to
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised until the time of

leave.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based compensation
plan. The fair value of the employee services received in exchange
for the grant of the options is recognised as an expense. The total
amount to be expensed over the vesting period is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options granted, excluding the
impact of any non-market vesting conditions (for example,
profitability and sales growth targets). Non-market vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about the number of
options that are expected to vest. At each balance sheet date, the
entity revises its estimates of the number of options that are
expected to vest. It recognises the impact of the revision of original
estimates, if any, in the income statement, with a corresponding

adjustment to equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction
costs are credited to share capital (nominal value) and share

premium when the options are exercised.

Bonus entitlements

The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised as a liability
when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of services rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of
the obligation can be made. Liabilities of bonus plan are expected
to be settled within twelve months and are measured at the

amounts expected to be paid when they are settled.
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2.20 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for

future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the

same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to

passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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2.21 Leases

(i)

(i)

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are charged to the income statement on

a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Finance leases

The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment. Leases of
property, plant and equipment where the Group has substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases.
Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’'s commencement at the
lower of the fair value of the leased property and the present value

of the minimum lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance
charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the finance balance
outstanding. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance
charges, are included in current and non-current liabilities. The
interest element of the finance cost is charged to the income
statement over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for

each period.

2.22 Financial guarantee contract liabilities

Financial guarantee contract liabilities are measured initially at their fair

values and are subsequently measured at the higher of (i) the amount

initially recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative amortisation

recognised in the income statement over the period of the relevant

liabilities and (i) the amount of which the Group is obligated to

reimburse the recipient under the financial guarantee contracts.
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2.23 Revenue and income recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable for the sale of goods in the ordinary course of the Group's
activities. Revenue is shown, net of value-added tax, returns, rebates and

discounts and after eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured, it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to
the entity and specific criteria have been met for each of the Group's
activities as described below. The amount of revenue is not considered to
be reliably measurable until all contingencies relating to the sale have
been resolved. The Group bases its estimates on historical results, taking
into consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction and the

specifics of each arrangement.

(i) Sales of goods
Sales of goods are recognised when products have been delivered
to the customer, the customer has accepted the products and

collectability of the related receivables is reasonably assured.

(i) Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the

effective interest method.

(iii) - Rental income
Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease

period.

2.24 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognised as a
liability in the Group's financial statements in the period in which the
dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders for final dividend

and Board of Directors for interim dividend.
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3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk
(including foreign exchange risk, cash flow and fair value interest rate risk,
and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk
management policy focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's financial

performance.

Management regularly monitors the financial risks of the Group. The use
of financial derivatives to hedge certain risk exposures is governed by the
Group's policies approved by the Board of Directors of the Company in
order to manage those risks. The Group does not use derivative financial

instruments for speculative purposes.

(a)  Foreign exchange risk
The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and the PRC with
transactions mainly settled in Hong Kong dollar (“HKD™), Renminbi
("RMB") and US dollar ("USD"). Foreign exchange risk arises when
future commercial transactions or recognised assets or liabilities are
denominated in a currency that is not the entity’s functional
currency. The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk from
various currency exposures, primarily with respect to USD and

RMB.
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3.1

Financial risk factors (Cont'd)

(a)  Foreign exchange risk (Cont'd)

Management has a policy to require group companies to manage
their foreign exchange risk against functional currency. It mainly
includes managing the exposures arise from sales and purchases
made by the relevant group companies in currencies other than
their own functional currencies. The Group also manages its foreign
exchange risk by performing regular reviews of the Group's net
foreign exchange exposures and has entered into certain foreign
exchange contracts to manage foreign exchange risks. As at 30th
June 2008, the Group had certain outstanding forward foreign
currency contracts to sell/purchase USD, details of which have been
disclosed in note 25. Certain of the Group's receivables, cash and
bank balances, trade payables and borrowings were also
denominated in foreign currencies, details of which have been
disclosed in notes 23, 26, 27 and 30.

At 30th June 2008, if HKD had weakened/strengthened by 5%
against other foreign currencies, with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profit for the year would have been
approximately HK$2,991,000 (2007: HK$1,416,000) higher/lower,
mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of
foreign currency-denominated financial assets and liabilities. The
Directors are of the opinion that any changes in fair value of the
Group’s forward foreign exchange contracts, as a result of any
reasonable changes in exchange rate between HKD and USD as at
30th June 2007 and 2008, would have no significant financial impact
to the Group.
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3.1

Financial risk factors (Cont'd)

(b)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group's income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates. The Group has no
significant interest-bearing assets except for the cash at bank, details
of which are disclosed in note 26. The Group’s exposure to changes
in interest rates is mainly attributable to its bank borrowings, details
of which are disclosed in note 30. Borrowings carry at floating rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk whereas those

carry at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk.

The Group will review whether bank loans bearing fixed or floating
rates should be drawn from time to time with reference to the
trend of changes in interest rates. The Group also uses certain
financial derivatives to manage its interest rate risk occasionally,

details of which have been disclosed in note 25.

As at 30th June 2008, if the interest rates had been 50 basis points
higher/lower, with all other variables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year would have been HK$158,000 (2007: HK$207,000)
higher/lower, mainly as a result of higher/lower interest income on
cash at bank net off with higher/lower interest expense on floating
rate borrowings. The Directors are of the opinion that any changes
in fair value of the Group's interest rate swap contracts, as a result
of any reasonable changes in interest rates as at 30th June 2008,

would have no significant financial impact to the Group.

3.1 BBEREBEZE(E)

(b)

HERERAFENERE
ARASETESERHEE

E - FUtRRRITESRRESE
o AEENRARKER S
MEAB AT MIGHELE
MR g meBRITERNF
BRI 26% % - REBPTS
REMEESEE T ZRE G
T BEF BRI 30 EE -
RIFHNEFEOERERE
AELHReRERR - ML
BlEF Xt SNERAERE
EEHRFENXRERRE -

AEEGTRRERNE 2

B2 AR TE FE SA Bl S 3F B A
EIMEEHETEE - K&
ENESERETITEeRT
ANERENERE  F@
BRI 255 & -

RZZZNEFRA=+H
MEBEM/ B>+ EE
FoMABEEMERERT
B REEOMEREL MR
> #1158,0008 L (ZE T+
F :207,00087T) © %K
FERROTFERASWAZE
/R BT B R R 5 B
FITEREENMEZH 2
m/ RO FEE - EFZRAR
BR-_ZTNFAA=THZ
FIERHEMEEES  KEE
ZREREHEON AT EE

BIeHAEEELEANK

2



3.1

Financial risk factors (Cont'd)

(9

(d)

Price risk

The Group is exposed to commodity price risk in relation to its
plastic materials which is largely dependent on the oil price. The
Group closely monitors the price of its raw materials in order to

determine its pricing strategies.

Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. The
carrying amounts of cash at bank, trade and bills receivables,
deposits and other receivables, derivatives financial instruments and
available-for-sale financial assets included in the consolidated
balance sheet represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit

risk in relation to its financial assets.

Substantially all of the Group’s cash at bank are deposited in major
financial institutions located in Hong Kong and the PRC, all
derivatives financial instruments are also entered into with these
financial institutions, which management believes are of high credit
quality. The Group has a policy to limit the amount of credit
exposure to any financial institution and management does not
expect any losses arising from non-performance by these

counterparties.

The Group also has policies in place to ensure that sale of products
are made to customers with an appropriate credit history and the
Group performs periodic credit evaluations of its customers.
Normally the Group does not require collaterals from trade

debtors.
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3.1

Financial risk factors (Cont'd)

(d)

(e)

Credit risk (Cont'd)

Management makes periodic collective assessment as well as
individual assessment on the recoverability of trade and other
receivables based on historical payment records, the length of the
overdue period, the financial strength of the debtors and whether
there are any disputes with the relevant debtors. The Group’s
historical experience in collection of trade and other receivables
falls within the recorded allowances and Directors are of the
opinion that adequate provision for uncollectible receivables has

been made in these consolidated financial statements.

At 30th June 2008, the Company had provided guarantees in
respect of banking facilities made available to its subsidiaries
amounting to HK$175,471,000 (2007: HK$143,511,000). Credit risk

in connection with such guarantees is considered to be minimal.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity management implies maintaining sufficient cash
and cash equivalents and the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities. Due to the dynamic
nature of the underlying businesses, the Group aims to maintain

flexibility in funding by keeping committed credit lines available.
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3.1

Financial risk factors (Cont'd)

(e)

Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

The Group'’s primary cash requirements have been for additions of
and upgrades on property, plant and equipment, settlement of
borrowings, payment for trade and other payables, and payment for
operating expenses. The Group mainly finances its working capital
requirements through a combination of internal resources and bank

borrowings.

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements to ensure it maintains sufficient cash balances
and adequate credit facilities to meet its liquidity requirements in

the short and long term.

The Group measures and monitors its liquidity through the
maintenance of prudent ratio regarding to the liquidity structure of
the overall assets, liabilities, loans and commitments of the Group.
The Group also maintains a prudent level of liquid assets and
committed banking facilities to ensure the availability of sufficient
cash flows to meet any unexpected and material cash requirements
in the ordinary course of business. As at 30th June 2008, the total
banking facilities made available to the Group amounting to
HK$298,089,000 (2007: HK$280,025,000) of which
HK$203,423,000 (2007: HK$168,625,000) was utilised by the
Group.
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3.1 Financial risk factors (Contd)
(e)  Liquidity risk (Contd)
The table below analyses the Group's and the Company's financial
liabilities and net-settled derivative financial liabilities into relevant
maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the balance
sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed
in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flow based on

the earliest date on which the Group or the Company can be
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3.2 Capital risk management
The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to

maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in
the light of changes in economic conditions. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payments
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or to

obtain new bank borrowings.

The Group also monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is
calculated as total borrowings (include current and non-current
borrowings as shown in the consolidated balance sheet) less cash and
cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as “equity”, as shown in the

consolidated balance sheet, plus net debt.

The table below analyses the Group's capital structure as at 30th June

2008 and 2007:

Total borrowings (note 30) mEE (Ms30)

Less: Cash and cash equivalents (note 26) w fﬁ%&ﬁ%%% (Hi3E 26)
Net debt BRI

Total equity wiEs

Total capital Y

Gearing ratio EXRBELE
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3.3 Fair value estimation

The carrying amounts of the Group’s current financial assets, including
cash and cash equivalents, trade and bills receivables, and deposits and
other receivables, and the Group's current financial liabilities including
trade payables, accruals and other payables, current borrowings and
derivative financial instruments, approximate their fair values due to their

short maturities.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as
publicly traded derivatives and available-for-sale securities) is based on
quoted market prices at the balance sheet date. The quoted market price
used for financial assets held by the Group is the current bid price; the
appropriate quoted market price for financial liabilities is the current ask

price.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by
using valuation techniques. The Group uses a variety of methods and
makes assumptions that are based on market conditions existing at each
balance sheet date. Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar
instruments are used for long-term debt and interest rate swaps. Other
techniques, such as estimated discounted cash flows, are used to
determine fair value for the remaining financial instruments. The fair value
of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined using quoted

forward exchange rates at the balance sheet date.

The nominal value less estimated credit adjustments of financial assets
and liabilities with a maturity of less than one year are assumed to
approximate their fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities for
disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual
cash flows at the current market interest rate that is available to the

Group for similar financial instruments.
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Estimates and judgement used in preparing financial statements are continually

evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including

expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances.

The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related

actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of

causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year are discussed below.

(9)

Useful lives, residual values and depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

The Group's management determines the estimated useful lives, residual
values and related depreciation charges for its property, plant and
equipment with reference to the estimated periods that the Group
intends to derive future economic benefits from use of these assets. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of the actual useful lives of
property, plant and equipment of similar nature and functions.
Management will adjust the depreciation charge where useful lives or
residual values are vary with previously estimated, or it will write-off or
write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been

abandoned or sold.

Actual economic lives may differ from estimated useful lives and actual
residual values may differ from estimated residual values. Periodic review
could result in a change in depreciable lives and residual values and

therefore depreciation expense in the future periods.
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A - NE AR R AR R

REBHRRELGB AT Gt hat
BAEEREOHESNABERER - 0
THARERERRNGRER A
BHANTMEMHFRYEERARL
FREEFENBE -

(a) W= HERRBHAEHFL
HERFTE
AEEEEBETENE  #aEk
REOGETACRFES  REREF
BINEER  ABRABETEAR
AEEARERREEELMER
ARG BN F MG
REGITIARECEE X5
NE BERXENBEERYTE
AERABREE - MR EAFHER
REFRIEEBKARTERR
5 R B B Y B _E BB X
FERMEEMEIORE

EREEF S s B b AEH
ARl BRREMET ARG HRE
TE - AREEHBANEFHR
BE - BMEARLRED @ A6
TERRBEZNEER -



(b)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets including property, plant and equipment, leasehold
land and land use rights and intangible assets are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts
have been determined based on value-in-use calculations or fair value
less costs to sell. These calculations require the use of judgements and

estimates.

Management judgement is required in the area of asset impairment
particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event has occurred that may
indicate that the related asset values may not be recoverable; (i) whether
the carrying value of an asset can be supported by the recoverable
amount, being the higher of fair value less costs to sell and net present
value of future cash flows which are estimated based upon the continued
use of the asset in the business; and (iii) the appropriate key assumptions
to be applied in preparing cash flow projections including whether these
cash flow projections are discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing
the assumptions selected by management in assessing impairment,
including the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the cash
flow projections, could materially affect the net present value used in the
impairment test and as a result affect the Group's financial position and
results of operations. If there is a significant adverse change in the
projected performance and resulting future cash flow projections, it may

be necessary to take an impairment charge to the income statement.

(b)

FUHEENRE
FUBEERRYMF  BIELR
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(9

Estimate of fair value of investment properties

The fair value of each investment property individually is determined at
each balance sheet date by independent professional valuers by
reference to comparable market transactions and where appropriate on
the basis of capitalisation of the net rental income/net income, after
allowing for outgoings and in appropriate cases provisions for
reversionary income potential. These methodologies are based upon
estimates of future results and a set of assumptions as to income and
expenses of the property and future economic conditions. The fair value
of each investment property reflects, among other things, rental income
from current leases and assumptions about rental income from future
leases in the light of current market conditions. The fair value also
reflects, on a similar basis, any cash outflows that could be expected in

respect of the property.

Impairment of trade receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment in trade receivables based on
an assessment of the recoverability of trade receivables. This assessment
is based on the credit history of its customers and other debtors and the
current market condition. Provisions are made where events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the receivables may not be collectible. The
identification of impairment in trade receivables requires the use of
judgement and estimates. Where the expectation is different from the
original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying amount of trade
receivables and impairment is recognised in the period in which such

estimate has been changed.

(c)
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(e)  Write-down of inventories to net realisable value

®

The Group writes down inventories to their net realisable value based on
an assessment of the realisability of inventories. Net realisable value of
inventories is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less estimated costs of completion and variable selling expenses.
These estimates are based on the current market condition and the
historical experience of manufacturing and selling products of similar
nature. It could change significantly as a result of changes in customer
taste and competitor actions in response to severe industry cycle. Write-
downs on inventories are recognised where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the value of the inventories may not be
realised. The identification of write-downs requires the use of judgement
and estimates. Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value of inventories and
write-downs of inventories is recognised in the period in which such

estimate has been changed.

Income taxes and deferred tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions. Judgement
is required in determining the provision for income taxes in each of these
jurisdictions. There are transactions and calculations during the ordinary
course of business for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such

determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary differences and
tax losses are recognised when management considers it is likely that
future taxable profits will be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilised. When the expectations are
different from the original estimates, such differences will impact the
recognition of deferred income tax assets and income tax charges in the

period in which such estimates have been changed.

(e)
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The principal activity of the Company is investment holding; its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the trading and manufacturing of plastic materials,

pigments, colorants, compounded plastic resins and engineering plastic

products.
Turnover HEH
Sale of goods HEEm

An analysis of the Group’s turnover and results for the year ended 30th June

2008 by geographical segment is as follows:

ARAIETBEBRRAER  AMEL
RIZEIEXBREBRN -6H 56
B ORMAMIREHZEERRE -

Group
3]
2008 2007
HK$°000 HK$'000
TEr TET
1,580,225 1,405,507

HE-ZZ\FRA=THLFEXRE
EzexBRERRWEINMAT

2008
The PRC
excluding
Hong Kong
Hong Kong ‘:F‘ Group
&R (FREEH) 59
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
TER TER TER
Turnover HEHE
— Gross segment —DEHEEE 1,246,902 452,552 1,699,454
— Inter-segment —DEEHE (74,130) (45,099) (119,229)
1,172,772 407,453 1,580,225
Segment results DEEE 21,907 11,535 33,442
Unallocated costs RDEKA (1,469)
Profit before taxation B 254 B g 31,973
Taxation 18 (1,294)
Profit for the year BB 1% 5 A 30,679
Minority interests DB R (6,486)
Profit attributable to equity /X &1 [% 5 &5 )& 7
holders of the Company 24,193



The segment assets and liabilities at 30th June 2008 and other segment

information for the year ended are as follows:

Segment assets

Unallocated assets

Total assets

Segment liabilities
Borrowings

Other unallocated liabilities

Total liabilities

Other information:
Capital expenditure
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Amortisation of leasehold
land and land use rights
Amortisation of technical
know-how
Impairment of receivables
(Reversal of provision)/
provision for impairment

of inventories
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PSR (B

FERAEEE (BE) /BE

RZZBENFRA=ZTHZAHEER

BERBEHALEE R HBER

mr

Hong Kong
BE
HK$’000
Ti&RT

419,174

85,152

9,114

4,728

228

800

899

(1,011

2008
The PRC
excluding
Hong Kong
=
(TBEEFR)
HK$’000
TER

334,763

40,975

4,013

10,538

186

50

2,055

Group
%8
HK$°000
FHT

753,937
10,494

764,431

126,127
213,986
6,214

346,327

13,127

15,266

414

800

949

1,044
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
& B TS R M 5

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 5 EXEERIHER (B
An analysis of the Group’s turnover and results for the year ended 30th June BE-ZTLE X A=-THLEFELRSE
2007 by geographical segment is as follows: BrEiBREEmEammT
2007
The PRC
excluding
Hong Kong
Hong Kong H Group
EE (TBEEE) £E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TERT TERT
Turnover LEH
— Gross segment —DEHEEE 1,180,930 333513 1,514,443
— Inter-segment — D EBREHE (66,766) (42,170) (108,936)
[ 114,164 291,343 1,405,507
Segment results DEEE 9,558 13,747 23,305
Unallocated costs RO B AR (2,803)
Profit before taxation B F A A 20,502
Taxation 1A (7:459)
Profit for the year BrEi 1% m A 13,043
Minority interests DRI R 1932
Profit attributable to equity 73 &) f% 5 &5 i F
14,975

holders of the Company

I 110day |enuuy 8007 / £00T
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The segment assets and liabilities at 30th June 2007 and other segment N
information for the year ended are as follows: =|
m
Hong Kong
e
HK$'000
TR
Segment assets DHEE 443,410
Unallocated assets AOREE
Total assets mEE
Segment liabilities DEEE 130,799
Borrowings ER=1
Other unallocated liabilities AR DB A &
Total liabilities BERE
Other information: Hin&#}
Capital expenditure BAYH 4,582
Depreciation of property,  #1% - BFE k&
plant and equipment 7,043
Amortisation of leasehold 15 1 i Jz {50 F 4 48 85
land and land use rights 240
Impairment of receivables & W FURE 33
Reversal of provision for FERBEERD

impairment of inventories

Turnover and segment results are presented based on the operating locations

of group companies. Unallocated costs mainly represent corporate expenses.

All the Group's turnover and operating profit are attributable to the manufacturing
and trading of plastic products and accordingly no analysis of the Group’s turnover

and contribution to operating profit by business segment is provided.

Ex

“ERLFRA=THZAHEER
EREEZBLFE A MY BEH
T
2007
The PRC
excluding
Hong Kong
H Group
(TBEEE) &E
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET
264,476 707,886
4,163
712,049
37,725 168,524
175,708
8,752
352,984
6,050 10,632
9,054 16,097
163 403
850 883
(600) (600)

%ﬁﬁ)}’“ﬁ%ﬂﬂ RERAEME
B ROERATERERMAX

REEMBz £ REEaHERENE
BEmsRENEE IS A RER

EXRBEADEXRBREEDEN 20



Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant and equipment, leasehold
land and land use rights, investment properties, intangible assets, inventories,
deposits, trade and other receivables, derivative financial instruments and cash
and cash equivalents. Unallocated assets mainly comprise tax recoverable,

deferred taxation and available-for-sale financial assets.

Segment liabilities comprise operating liabilities. Unallocated liabilities mainly

comprise tax payable and deferred taxation.

Capital expenditure comprises additions to property, plant and equipment,

leasehold land and land use rights, and intangible assets.

Rental income HEWA

Outgoings in respect of investment properties amounted to approximately
HK$307,000 (2007: HK$284,000).

Fair value gains on investment
properties (note 18)

Derivative financial instruments TEERIA

— Forward foreign exchange
contracts - realised

— Forward foreign exchange —-BEEERBRZERE

contracts - unrealised

Net exchange gains SMEW &% EE

HEREMEN G

HEEBKE (M 24)

H & X5 A8 2 RUSORE

Gain on disposal of an investment property
Gain on disposal of a business (note 24)
Impairment of receivables relating
to a disposed business
PIERE— B AR s
FMELZEBRHE

Negative goodwill arising from acquisition of
additional interests in a subsidiary

BREMENAFEKE (FE18)

- REEERGRCENAN-CE

IMEEFERREME  HERHKE -
METHMRtHERE REVE &
WEE HE K& BIHREMER
FTELRIE  URBELRBEEE
BoAPREEFERBETREFIE -
BEMERAMEENBEE
HHMBEBEREEAGEAN - ROEAR
IZRRNBEREERIE -

BRARXBREME BERRE H
Eiﬂ&iﬁﬁ%%&ﬂﬁﬁémﬁ

Iﬂﬂ’fﬁ

2008 2007
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR THET
2,899 1,563

KEWE 2 BERTA £49307,000% T
(ZZEZTHF 1 284,000 7T) o

H-—RER

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TAT
8,477 426
E:7)
2,382 2,440
(50) 999
3,260 3,138
443 —
13,235 -
(729) —
— 2273

27,018 9,276



Cost of inventories sold excluding
manufacturing costs

Amortisation of leasehold land
and land use rights (note 17)

Amortisation of technical
know-how (note 19)

Auditor's remuneration

Depreciation:

— Owned property, plant and equipment

— Property, plant and equipment under

finance leases

Provision for impairment of trade receivables

Provision / (reversal of provision) for
impairment of inventories
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Employee benefit expenses, including
directors’ emoluments (note 14)
Operating lease rentals in
respect of land and buildings
Repair and maintenance expenses
Transportation and packaging expenses
Travelling and office expenses
Utility expenses

Other expenses

Total costs of sales, distribution costs

and administrative expenses

Representing:

Cost of sales
Distribution costs

Administrative expenses

HEFERA
(NEREEMRK)
MELTH R+
fEmEHE (ME17)
BT EE (P 19)

ZEE 2

e
—BEVE  BELEE
-REREHEERFAZ
nx - BERE

g 5 RW SR E R B

BERERE (BE)

HENE  BEX
REzER/ ()

BB &M
(BRE=ME) (ME14)

TR F EEHERS

BERRERX
BRRBERS
EREBAEFAY
KERAX
HtnEH

HERE - HERAR
GlsT
K -

HERA

HHRA

R

2008
HK$’000
TER

1,370,041

414

800
1,573

12,815

2,451
220

1,044

34

83,080

8,730
4,726
22,360
13,573
13,965
31,519

1,567,345

1,439,676
42,584
85,085

1,567,345

2007
HK$'000
TET

1,207,630

403

1,354

[1,844

4,253
883

(600)

(14)

72,998

7,743
4,011
20,735
12,499
12,796
30,694

1,387,229

1,272,038
41,086
74,105

1,387,229



Finance income:

— Interest income from bank deposits

Finance costs:
— Interest on bank borrowings wholly
repayable within five years

— Interest element of finance leases

Finance costs — net

P
— RITEHFBHRA

HHER
—FEREFANEBER 2R
EEZHE
-REMENEHBH

VHER-FE

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of 16.5% (2007:

17.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year. Taxation on the Group's

subsidiaries established and operate in the PRC has been calculated at the

rates of taxation as applicable to the relevant subsidiaries.

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated income statement

represents:

Current taxation:
Hong Kong profits tax
PRC corporate income tax

Overprovision in previous years

Deferred taxation (note 31)
Additional provision made as a

result of development of tax rules

AEEHA
BEFEH
R RSN
NS EBERE

ERIEFE (KTEE31)
I RERRETIE N B

2008
HK$’000
TR

397

(10,812)
(409)

(11,221)

(10,824)

2007
HK$'000
TAET

542

(8347)
(810)

(9,157)

(8615)

BEMNGRIREFA GG R
BREXANZ TR BE(CT2LF A

NZtEER)FE

c HEEMB

BIREAKERPEKYREZ 2K

BRRZEBRBREFERE -
BERBERZBAXIEA

2008
HK$°000
TER

3216
5,267
(1,435)

7,048
(5,754)

1,294

2007
HK$'000
TAET

2,540
1913
(155)

4,298
1,743

1,418

7,459



The taxation on the Group's profit before taxation differs from the theoretical

amount that would arise using the Hong Kong profits tax rate as follows:

Profit before taxation

Calculated at a taxation rate
of 16.5% (2007: 17.5%)
Effect of different taxation rates in the PRC
Income not subject to taxation
Expenses not deductible for
taxation purposes
Tax losses not recognised
Overprovision in previous years
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses
Effect of changes in tax rates
Additional provision made as a
result of development of tax rules
Others

With the new Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC becoming effective from
Ist January 2008, certain of the subsidiaries established in the PRC as foreign

invested enterprises that previously subject to preferential tax rates of 15% to

24% are now subject to a tax rate of 25%.

The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company is dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company to the extent of HK$6,756,000 (2007:

HK$6,919,000).

BR B A A

BRI E16.6% (ZTTHF
17.5%) sTE 2 #I1A

FREAANRZEE
BARB WA
AAHH 2 X

RHER 2R E R
DA R R

fE VAR RHER < B 15 B 18

BERHYE

R BRBREME I BE

Hfty

AEERBRHAEN 2 HARRER

REBZHEMa B 2

mr

2008
HK$’000
TER

31,973

5,276
1,106
(3,934)

614
808
(1,435)
(574)
(161)

(406)

1,294

BaiEe =8

2007
HK$'000
TET

20,502

3,588
580
(2239)

1113
3292
(155)

1418
(138)

7,459
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Interim, paid, of HK1.0 cent Bk Efk B =A% 1.0 Bl
(2007: HK1.0 cent) per ordinary share (ZEZLF - 1.051)

Final, proposed, of HK1.0 cent BOR KRR S G 1.0 1L
(2007: HK1.0 cent) per (ZTZLF 1.080)
ordinary share (note) (Bi&E)

Note:

At a meeting held on 3rd October 2008, the Directors proposed a final dividend of HK
I.0 cent per ordinary share. This proposed dividend is not reflected as a dividend
payable in these financial statements and will be reflected as an appropriation of

retained earnings for the year ending 30th June 2009.

Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to
equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary

shares in issue during the year.

Profit attributable to equity RARREEREN (FET)

holders of the Company (HK$'000)

Weighted average number FRBETEBRRZ MEFHE

of ordinary shares in issue

Basic earnings per share BREARRF (BREW)
(HK cents per share)

2008 2007

HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TAET
3,692 3,600
3,692 3,600
7,384 7200

P EE

RIBENFTAZBRTZEE L E2
FIRE R B FA 0B - tIEFRA R
WERNAMBHRRPINERNRSESREE
“ERAFAAZTRIEFEZREEN DS
AL o

X

BRERRMN TR A AR EAEE NG
NERERTE BB TS A

B o
e

2008 2007

24,193 14,975
364,343,000 360,000,000
6.64 4.16



Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion of dilutive
potential ordinary shares arising from the Company’s share options. Dilutive
earnings per share for the years ended 30th June 2008 and 2007 equal basic

earnings per share as the exercise of the outstanding share options would be

anti-dilutive.

Wages, salaries and other allowances TE& - HBi R H 2R
Pension costs RAREKAR
Share-based compensation expense PARR 17 32 69 B

e

AEEREERNE  CHDETER
Bz mEFHRELRE  URRME
AMBENZARTERREREHE
o NEE_TTN\FAA=TARC
FERLFERNAZTHIEMAFE - BT
ERATEBREARREYE RUtm
BEEsEREERNISTMEREAR

B -

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET
79,329 69,707
3,636 3,188
15 103

83,080 72,998



(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EFH2
The remuneration of each of the Directors of the Company for the year BE_ZZT\EX A=THLEE
ended 30th June 2008 is set out below: BuEZEsMEMT
Salaries,
other
allowances Employer’s
and benefits contribution
in kind  Discretionary to pension
270 bonuses scheme
Name of Director Fees HAZMR BME EXHEKS Total
BB we BMA#® MIA 2B X

HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TRERT TER TER TER

Executive Directors HTEE

Mr HUI Sai Chung FRus S 650 2,728 — 262 3,640
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong AR KA 650 2,728 — 262 3,640
Dr WONG ChiYing, Anthony HFEETL = 2,004 171 99 2,274
Mr LAl Kam Wah RipELE — 2,004 43 67 2,114
Madam LIU Sau Lai BABUTL — 1,419 2 139 1,580
Independent Non- B

Executive Directors FHTES

Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul EELE 150 — — — 150
Mr FONG Pong Hing REES 100 — — — 100
Mr CHAN Dit Lung PRk L& 100 — — — 100
Total B 1,650 10,883 236 829 13,598



(a) Directors’ emoluments (Cont'd) a) EFME (&)

The remuneration of each of the Directors of the Company for the year BE_ZTLE R AZ=THLEE
ended 30th June 2007 is set out below: FUEEZMENT
Salaries,
other
allowances Employer's
and benefits contribution
inkind  Discretionary to pension
- bonuses scheme
Name of Director Fees HMUEHR BITME EXHERE Total
EXAB fika BN = HITEAL K Ek
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TET TET TET TET

Executive Directors WTESE
Mr HUI Sai Chung Fiaus it 650 2,683 — 256 3,589
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong FEX LA 650 2,683 — 256 3,589
Dr WONG ChiYing, Anthony BEfEEL — 1,908 — 95 2,003
Mr LAl Kam Wah RpERL — 1908 — 65 1973
Mr CHING Yu Lung (i) BOELEN — 1,232 — 45 1,277
Madam LIU Sau Lai BABNL — 1345 — 127 1,472
Independent Non- By

Executive Directors FUMTES
Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul fEsLE 150 — — — 150
Mr FONG Pong Hing AHBEEE 100 — — — 100
Mr CHAN Dit Lung BREkSEEAE 100 — — — 100
Total BB 1,650 11,759 — 844 14253
No Directors waived any emoluments during the year (2007: Nil). No REFERNTEESZHERES 2 M
emoluments have been paid by the Group to any Directors as an 2 (Z2TLF  E)  -RAFER
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for AREREINTEMESNEHM
loss of office during the year (2007: Nil). SHREESRUCAHE (TS

FE) -

Note: Fif 3T -

(i) Resigned on Ist January 2007 () WNZEZLF-F-HEE



(®)

Five highest paid individuals (b)
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group
for the year include four (2007: four) Directors whose emoluments are
disclosed in the analysis presented above. The emoluments paid and

payable to the remaining individual during the year were as follows:

Salaries, other allowances O HAEE R
and benefits in kind EYNa

Discretionary bonus BB TEAL

Pension costs RREHAR

The emoluments of the afore-mentioned individual fell within the band of
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 (2007: HK$ 1,500,001 to HKS$
2,000,000). No emoluments were paid to the five highest paid individuals
(including Directors and other employees) as an inducement to join the

Group or as compensation for loss of office (2007: Nil).

TERRHEMAL

AEER ERAUGSHFMAL
B (ZEREE  OfU) RE
FOEMEER EXEN 2z
RE BTN UKSFMALR

LERZHMFBRT -
2008 2007
HK$000 HK$'000
TEx TAET
1,592 1,453
420 —
159 131
2,171 1,584

AT zHMEeBA—BEES
TEZFRTEBL(ZES+: —
BAtBT BIE-_g88T) 2
HEXN - AKEVER AL (B
BEZREMESR) XM ERR
EMARRESIERKEBA 2B
B(ZZZT+F:E) -



100

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B IS R R M EE

6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16 M% - BERRE

Furniture,
fixtures
Properties Machinery  and office
under  Leasehold and  equipment Motor  Tools and
Buildings ~ development improvements  equipment R/l + EE R vehicles moulds Total
BF RETNZ HEVERE BERRE WAZR 18 IARER ag
HKS000  HK$000  HKSOOD  HKS000  HKPOOO  HK$000  HKSOO0  HK$000
TR TER TEn TR TER TiEn TEn  TiEx
At Ist July 2006 RZFERELA-H
Cost KA 71771 7 7669 15681 17979 9539 3476 267308
Accumulated depreciation ZitHE (14845) — (G105 (108724)  (14164) (7.398) (2807)  (153043)
Net book amount BEFE 56926 n 2564 48,098 3815 2141 669 11428
Year ended 30th June 2007 RZFTLE
RAZTHLEER
Opening net book amount BIBEFE 56926 n 2564 48,098 3815 2141 669 114285
Exchange differences EXEE 1,893 3 6 1,490 (16l) 88 1 332
Additions £ - - 1270 7460 1483 47 7 10632
Reclassification to ENHEERENE
investment properties (1,357) — — — — — — (1,357)
Transfer g = (75) — 75 — = — —
Disposalsfwrite-off HE/ Wik — — — () (10) — — (I
Depreciation ik (1,608) — (1085)  (10672) (1,794) (867) a7y (16097
Reclassification to assets ENNEERE
held for sale (note 24) HWEEE (M 24) — = (807) (5955) (444) (254) —  (1440)
Closing net book amount BREEFE 55,854 — 1948 40495 2889 | 455 672 103313
At 30th June 2007 RZFRLERAZTH
Cost KA 71,828 — 7312 158477 18484 9014 3521 26863
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (15974) — (5364)  (117982)  (15595) (7559) (2849)  (165303)
Net book amount REHE 55,854 - 1,948 40495 2889 1455 612103313




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
& B TS R M 5

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Contd)

16 W% BERRRE

g

Furniture,
fixtures
Machinery  and office
Leasehold and  equipment Motor  Tools and
Buildings improvements  equipment &l * XER  vehicles moulds Total
BF HEVEEE BERERE BLERE RE IAREA &%
HK$000 ~ HK$O000  HKF000  HK$O000  HK$O00  HKFO00  HK$000
THT THT THT THT THT THET TET
At Ist July 2007 RZEELF+A—H
Cost A 71,828 7312 158477 18,484 9014 3520 268,636
Accumulated depreciation ZitHhE (15974) (5364)  (117982) (15595) (7559) (2849)  (165,323)
Net book amount REFE 55,854 1948 40495 2,889 | 455 672 103313
Year ended 30th June 2008 BHE-TTN\F
ANAZTHLEEE
Opening net book amount HREFE 55,854 1,948 40,495 2889 | 455 672 103313
Exchange differences ERER 6,535 144 3897 211 186 10 10,983
Additions Em 900 1290 2,007 1,547 1,891 162 7797
Disposals/write-off e/ Wk — - (74) (15) (38) — (127)
Depreciation e (1735) (1045)  (10,688) (1233) (487) (78) (15266
Closing net book amount MR F(E 61,554 2337 35,637 3399 3007 766 106,700
At 30th June 2008 RZEENERA=TH
Cost KA 80712 8786 173,797 19,841 9811 3686 296633
Accumulated depreciation Zitihe (19,158) (6449)  (138,160) (16,442) (6,804) (2920)  (189,933)
Net book amount REFE 61,554 2337 35,637 3399 3,007 766 106,700
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(@)

Depreciation expense of HK$!1,927,000 (2007: HK$12,141,000) has
been included in cost of sales, HK$225,000 (2007: HK$392,000) in
distribution costs and HK$3,114,000 (2007: HK$3,564,000) in

administrative expenses.

As at 30th June 2008, the cost and accumulated depreciation of property,
plant and equipment held by the Group under finance leases amounted
to approximately HK$20,067,000 (2007: HK$34,483,000) and
HK$9,207,000 (2007: HK$14,470,000) respectively.

As at 30th June 2008, the net book value of property, plant and
equipment pledged as security for the Group’s banking facilities
amounted to approximately HK$21,751,000 (2007: HK$19,961,000).

Certain land and buildings of the Group were reclassified as investment
properties during the year ended 30th June 2007 because its use has
changed. The difference resulting between the carrying amount and the
fair value of those properties at the date of transfer amounting to

HK$2, 115,000 was recognised in revaluation reserve.

FEEM11,927,00086 T (=TT
T4 :12,141,0008 T) EBEE
HERA - 2250008 (Z 2T+
% :392,0008 ) BEBEED HK
A RK3,114,0008 7T (ZTTLF -
3,564,000 L) E B EETH X
Hj °

RZZEENFAA=1H ' ~&H
BEREVNEREZDE BER
REIRARRATES RN R
20,067,000 T (ZE T L 5 :

34,483,000 7T) 129,207,000/ 7T
(ZZZT+F : 14,470,000 T)

RZEZNF A=TH ' K£H
REFEBTEL21,751,0008 1T
(ZZTZT+F 1 19,961,000% L)
ZNE BERREECERTR
11 RAREMGRITIEE

REE-FRLEAASHALF
ER - BrEEmAERESE

BENOERREME - HEREY
REZE/BNEEERRTFELE
2,115,000/ 7T 1 E 1 7 8 W

=7
A ©



The Group's interests in leasehold land and land use rights represent prepaid

operating lease payments and their net book values are analysed as follows:

AEERHEL R T HERE ER
REBALEREFE  AREFED

g N
Group
&8
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TET
At beginning of the year F4 14,756 16,177
Additions Zm 1,330 —
Exchange differences ENER 774 224
Reclassification to investment properties ENHOBRERENE = (1,242)
Amortisation of prepaid BN EHETIE B
operating lease payments (414) (403)
At end of the year FR 16,446 14,756
HK$°000 HK$'000
Geographical analysis: W DT FTET FETT
Leasehold land , in Hong Kong, held on: EEERAZHELDH -
Leases of between 10 to 50 years TEERTHZHEE 7,199 6,021
Land use rights, in the PRC, held on: HERBRAZ DA
Leases of between 10 to 50 years TEERTHE7HEE 9,247 8,735
16,446 14,756

RZBEENFEAA=+H HELHR
+ i fF A 4 BR T F B 494,958,000 1T
(ZZFZ£F 14,726,000 T) EHEEF
R17 - RAKERBRITEE -

As at 30th June 2008, the net book value of leasehold land and land use rights
pledged as security for the Group's banking facilities amounted to
approximately HK$4,958,000 (2007: HK$4,726,000).



At beginning of the year

Disposals

Fair value gains (note 7)
Reclassification from property, plant

and equipment and leasehold land

At end of the year

(@) The investment properties were revalued at 30th June 2008 by Chung,

Chan & Associates, an independent professionally qualified valuer.

1
HE

DV EKE (E7)
BYE - BERRER

MELHEHN DR

FR

Valuations were based on current prices in an active market.

(b) As at 30th June 2008, the fair value of investment properties pledged as
security for the Group's banking facilities amounted to approximately

HK$9,158,000 (2007: HK$5,897,000).

(c) The Group's interests in investment properties at their book values are

analysed as follows:

In Hong Kong, held on:

Leases of between 10 to 50 years

EEERA
TEERTFZHE

2008
HK$’000
TER

17,400
(1,157)
8,477

24,720

Group
&8
2007
HK$'000
TET

12,260

426

4714

17,400

(a) AEEZHBREVER-_FTNF

\

io

AAZTEMBYERMGLEMEE
TRBERRTSNERERE

b) RZZTZNFANA=1H &E®
¥RMEFEL9,158,0008 L (=%
T+ % 15,897,000 T) B HIE T
1T RARERGRITEE -

) AKEREEMERzEGZREE

oMM

2008
HK$°000
TER

24,720

Group
3
2007
HK$'000
TET
17,400



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
& B TS R M 5

I8 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont'd) 18 REYX (8
(d) The future aggregate minimum rentals receivables under non-cancellable (d BEFAHENLEHE KKK
operating leases are as follows: EREKBEERENT :
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TET
Not later than one year —FER 1,312 [,486
Later than one year and —FREPERASF
not later than five years 107 460
1,419 1,946
19 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19 BREE
Group
£
2008 2007
Technical know-how 1T 0 3B HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TET
Opening net book amount HAY BREFE — —
Additions 1B m 4,000 —
Amortisation B (800) -
Closing net book amount HURBRE (B 3,200 —
Cost XA 4,000 —
Accumulated amortisation B 3 (800) -
Net book value REHE 3,200 —
Amortisation of the Group’s technical know-how has been included in AEERIAH BHE AEETHEX
administrative expenses. o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B IS R R M EE

20 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 20 IHHENBEE
Group
2008 2007
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT TET
At beginning of the year F1) = —
Additions 12 m 2,000 —
At end of the year FR 2,000 —
Available-for-sale financial assets represent a 5% equity interests in an unlisted AHHENBEERRNEERBE LR
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The amount is denominated BAMZELMARZED 2 AR -
in HKD. hEBABTRENM -
21 INVESTMENTS IN AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES 21 EUMBARRKKEBARRE
(a)  Investments in subsidiaries (@) MERAKE
Company
nE
2008 2007
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTER TET
Unlisted shares, at cost FETRL @ KA 62,711 62,711
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as at 30th June RZZEZNEFRA=1H  RAF
2008 are set out in note 36 to the financial statements. ZEIEMBRARAFBEENIBERE
536
(b)  Amounts due from subsidiaries (b)  EYHTE R A
The balances are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. The ZEBRLTEER  2ERERERE
amounts are mainly denominated in HKD. KEE WEEUBTREM -
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Trading stocks BHEBER
Raw materials R#
Finished goods SUpK n

The cost of inventories recognised as expenses and included in cost of sales in
the consolidated income statement amounted to approximately

HK$1,438,632,000 (2007: HK$1,272,638,000).

The Group reversed HK$1,266,000 (2007: HK$600,000) provision for
impairment of inventories, which has been included in cost of sales in the

consolidated income statement.

Inventories amounting to HK$ 140,451,000 (2007: HK$116,718,000) were held

under the trust receipts bank loan arrangements (note 30).

Group

£H

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAT
84,066 70010
87,875 58915
32,421 23877
204,362 152,802

RN ERAEER AP REREFH
T2 EERAA L4 A1,438,632,0007%
T(ZZETHF :1,272,638,0007T)

AREEAE1,266,0008 T (ZES+
E 600000?&)2@ SREER I
BWERANBEER AT AL o

4 140,451,000 L (ZEE+ & ¢
116,718,000/ 1) 2 F E R E = LW &
RITER 2L HHE (H530) ©



Group

&8
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TET
Trade receivables B 5 KK 271,369 291,883
Less: Provision for impairment of receivables B EWGRORUE B (2,824) (1,734)
268,545 290,149
Bills receivable R 25,254 26,167
293,799 316,316
The carrying amount of trade receivables are denominated in the following BORKFHOBREENTIEERE
currencies: fif :
Group
%8
2008 2007
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TET
HKD BT 165,615 235962
RMB AR 83,673 39,732
usD e 22,081 16,189
271,369 291,883
The carrying value of the trade receivables approximates its fair value. BHREFZ REERE QN TERD -
There was no concentration of credit risk with respect to trade receivables as ARAEERERECRFE  UE

the Group has a large number of customers. RN ITEEEROET 2AR -



The majority of the Group’s sales are with credit terms of 30 to 90 days. The
remaining amounts are on letter of credit or documents against payment. The

ageing analysis of trade receivables by invoice date is as follows:

Below 90 days 0—90H
91 - 180 days 91 — 180 H
Over 180 days #8180 A

The credit quality of trade receivables neither past due nor impaired has been
assessed by reference to historical information about the counterparty default

rates. The existing counterparties do not have significant default in the past.

As of 30th June 2008, trade receivables of HK$84,171,000 (2007:
HK$77,847,000) were past due but not considered to be impaired. These
relate to a number of independent customers for whom there is no recent

history of default. The ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

| - 30 days 1—30H
31 - 60 days 31 —60H
Over 60 days #8860 A

AEBERHBHHERNEEHRI0ZE0
A HRUEAMRIARREF X #E
T-BHRERREZA 2R NN
N

Group
%8

2008 2007
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR FET
241,097 262,774
19,650 23910
10,622 5,199
271,369 291,883

Iﬂﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂé@ﬁ’]m%ﬁﬂk AEEE

RERSERMYU TR ENBE
BRETRHE - RAZHTBRELEE
AHR

R-ZZENFSA=Z+H E5EUR
84,171,000 = (= T T £ F -
77,847,000/ 7T) 45 B 8 BB I S ORI(E
WEFESRZEZIREHRENRT
BHBIRE - W EEHEUFNERER
AT
Group
£8
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBx FET
51,394 51,983
16,472 13,756
16,305 12,108

84,171 77847



As of 30th June 2008, trade receivables of HK$2,824,000 (2007:
HK$1,734,000) were impaired. The amount of the provision was HK$2,824,000
(2007: HK$1,734,000). The individually impaired trade receivables mainly relate
to a number of independent customers which are in unexpected difficult
economic situations. The ageing of these trade receivables is mainly over 60

days.

Movement in the provision for impairment of trade receivables for the Group

is as follows:

At beginning of the year F1)

Provision for receivables JE W R

Receivables written off as uncollectible i EElb=F - A E 3 &
Exchange differences bEH R

At end of the year FR

Bills receivables are mainly with maturity period of within 90 days and are

denominated in the following currencies:

HKD &I
RMB AR
UsD ETT

There is no recent history of default on bills receivables.

RZFZNFAA=TH EHEERK
2,824,000 T (ZTF £+ 1,734,000
BIL)KERE RZTTFAA=T
A #EL%¥EAR2824,0008L (=T
+F: 1,734,000 7T) © ERIAENHE
SRBREERBERBR AIMEER
BHNBUEPF - WERKFNERRET
EHiB60R o

AEBEZESRUFREREEZ SN
T

Group
%

2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TET
1,734 940
949 883
(59) (146)
200 57
2,824 1,734

EREEZINHEETZROBA - WA
THERREM

Group
ESL]

2008 2007
HK$°000 HK$'000
THERT THET
1,061 10,550
4,755 1,566
19,438 14,051
25,254 26,167

R EERNER 2 BRLE -



A subsidiary of the Group transferred certain bills of exchange amounting to
approximately HK$10,563,000 (2007: HK$7,083,000) with recourse in
exchange for cash as at 30th June 2008.The transactions have been accounted

for as collateralised bank advances (note 30).

Pursuant to an agreement entered into between the Group and certain third
parties dated 19th October 2006, the Group agreed to dispose of certain
assets, representing the business of Ngai Hing PlastChem Company Limited, a
subsidiary of the Group, to the relevant parties. Details of these assets held for

sale as a disposal group at 30th June 2007 were as follows:

0mE - BER&E

. 1=
Inventories FE

Property, plant and equipments

Prepayments SEANE
BekBeER

Cash and cash equivalents

Immediately before the completion of the disposal, the carrying value of the
relevant assets held for sale as a disposal group and the costs directly attributable
to the disposal amounted to HK$29,877,000. The disposal was completed on 31st
December 2007 at a final consideration of HK$43,112,000. Consequently, a gain

on disposal of a business amounting to HK$ 13,235,000 was recorded for the year.

RZEZENFERAZTBEALEZHE
DA 410,563,000 T (ZTFTLF
7,083,000 ) M ERE 2 R E R
BRTRITUARRE - BARHES
AR B |RITER(FIEI0) -

REAKSBRE=FR_FZZ FETA
TABIUZHh#E FAEEREHEHR
MEARREEERARZHNEE
REBTEBRE=F  ZZEER-Z
TLFEAAZTHANLERAREH
mm

2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
TEx TET

— 7,460
= 4,588
— 15
— 9,254

— 21417

RMARLBEHETKA  ZHEEEEL
EBREECEBERREALESI R
ERAKA£29,877,0008 7T - BEHE
ZERBEHREAL3,112,0008T * L E
RZEZE+F+-_A=+-HBRK - K
b BB UL E % 2 Ba $£13,235,000%
TERAFERALR -



Forward foreign exchange contracts
- held for trading (note (i))

Interest rate swaps (note (ii))

Notes:

(i)  Forward foreign exchange contracts

2008

Assets
5E
HK$°000
TER

HNERHIA K
—FHEDE (KEEG)) 745
FEBEEL (FFFEG) 529
1,274

As at 30th June 2008, the Group had outstanding forward foreign currency

contracts to sell/purchase US dollars. The notional principal amounts of the

outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts at 30th June 2008 were
HK$1,571,000,000 (2007: 839,280,000).

(i) Interest rate swaps

The notional principal amount of the outstanding interest rate swap contracts at
30th June 2008 was HK$50,000,000 (2007: Nil).

2007
Liabilities Assets Liabilities
=L BE BE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET FET
352 1,575 603
352 1,575 603
BiTsE
(i) HNEREEH
RZZZENFESA=TH AEEEX

(ii)

RUSNERBEKAE EET o R
ZENEAAZTRUERRUINE R

AN 2R EALEA,571,000,000
BL(ZZ2Z L F : 839,280,000%
JT) °

D) o



Group Company

1) A7
2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TR TET TR TR
Cash on hand RettEn 438 305 — —
Bank balances RITHR 78,444 58912 145 75
78,882 59217 145 75
Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following currencies: ReRBREFEUTNEE REN -
Group Company
£E N
2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FTERT TET FTERT TET
HKD BT 22,101 21,657 145 75
RMB = 34,141 26,026 — —
usD e 22,321 11,534 — —
Others HAt 319 — — —
78,882 59217 145 75
Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. BITHERREBARTEREBAE
The Group's cash and bank balances denominated in RMB are deposited with ROFE - AEENAREREG R
banks in the PRC. The conversion of these RMB denominated balances into ERBRITESRRPBEZRITHET - Bk
foreign currencies and the remittance of these funds out of the PRC is subject MARBREM cERRINE U HE
to the exchange control restrictions imposed by the PRC government. AESELPHEXRRTERGER
ZIMEE B
Cash and cash equivalents include the following for the purposes of the cash HRERNEXRME  ReRkREEEL
flow statement: BT5IER -
Group
&8
2008 2007
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TR
Cash and bank balances R RIRITER 78,882 59.217
Cash and bank balances included in REHEEBEENR
assets of disposal group BIRFIELHEZ
classified as held for sale (note 24) He ik (H3E24) — 9,254

78,882 68471



A majority of the suppliers are on open account. Certain suppliers grant credit ABOEEERLERS L TAKE

period of 30 to 90 days to the Group. ZRH—M A30ZE90A -
The ageing analysis of the trade payables is as follows: BHRNFNRRITWT -
Group
&8
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TET
Below 90 days 0-90H 103,085 124,547
91 - 180 days 91-180H 432 3,895
Over 180 days #8180 H 690 446
104,207 128,888
The carrying value of trade payables approximates its fair value, and is BORNRZEEERERATERE
denominated in the following currencies: WIATHIER REL -
Group
%8
2008 2007
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TET
HKD BT 6,701 8,347
RMB AR 26,258 25,244
usD e 71,248 95297

104,207 128,888



Share capital

R

Nominal
Number of value
ordinary HiE
shares HK$’000
EEREE TR
Authorised shares of HK$0.10 each SFREE 0.10 BT 2 EERA
At Ist July 2006, 30th June 2007 and 2008 RZZEERFLA—RB ZZTTLF
E=FENFRR=1H 800,000,000 80,000
Issued and fully paid: BERETRHBERE :
At Ist July 2006 and 30th June 2007 RZEZRFLtA—HR
S AV = 360,000,000 36,000
Issuance of new shares (note (i)) BT (MEEEG) 6,000,000 600
Exercise of share options FRITE 2 BRE
during the year (note (ii)) (B 5 i) 3,200,000 320
At 30th June 2008 R-ZZEBNFAA=TH 369,200,000 36,920
Share premium B A& E
HK$'000
FAET
At Ist July 2006 and 30th June 2007 RZZEZRFLA-BK
:7?t¢AH +H 57,611
Issuance of new shares (note (i) 1T AR (HEEEG)) 2,400
Exercise of share options Elﬁﬁﬁz,ﬁﬁﬁ&% (B & i)
during the year (note (ii)) 1,794
Transfer from share option reserve (note (i) ¥ B ERERE (M) 66|
At 30th June 2008 R-ZZBNFRAZ=TH 62,466
Notes: P
(i) On 3rd January 2008, the Company issued 6,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$O0. () MRZTZNF—A=F ARANUEHK

(i)

each to a third party, who is also the purchaser of the Group’s disposed business,
at HK$0.5 each for cash, totalling HK$3,000,000, for working capital purposes.

These new shares rank pari passu in all respects with the existing shares.

During the year ended 30th June 2008, a total of 3,200,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.1 each were issued at an average price of HK$0.66 each for cash upon the
exercise of the relevant options, with total proceeds of approximately
HK$2,114,000. These new shares rank pari passu in all respects with the existing

shares.

Upon the exercise of the share options as mentioned in note (i), the fair value of
these share options amounting to HK$661,000 previously accounted for in the

share option reserve was transferred to the share premium account.

(iii)

0.5/ 7T IR % % 176,000,000/% &= i% H &
0BTz EBRT—BYE=F (Bh
BAEBLEERKZER) A
3,000,0008 LIEEREELBR ° %
EROEERERIRNES T EZER
FHAT o
#aﬁ_??A¢AH +HLEE
» #8%03,200,0008 B R EE0. 178 T
%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%om%ﬁiﬁ
HEBREMEIT  EMBRLA
2,114,0008 T - ZERMEERDE
ARBESFEERSHA -
RATEM G il 2 B RS - SRR
iz D FEA £661,0008 ¢ 2 5
ANEZBREFEERERNEER -

El/\



Share option scheme

Pursuant to the share option scheme approved and adopted on 5th December
2002, the Board of Directors of the Company may offer eligible employees
(including Executive Directors) rights to subscribe for shares of the Company
(the “Share Options”). Movements in the number of Share Options

outstanding during the year are as follows:

At beginning of the year F1)
Granted &
Exercised 171
Forfeited {E R
At end of the year FR

Details of the options granted under the share option scheme outstanding as

at 30th June 2008 are as follows:

Exercise

Date of grant Expiry date price

Rt A HHA T

Directors % nd May 2003 Ist May 2009 HK$0.82
“TZ-FnA-H “EENFRA-H 0.8287

Employees fE B 30th April 2003 29th April 2009 HK$0.82
TEEFIEMASTR CTEAFMACTAR  080ER

2nd May 2003 st May 2009 HK$0.62
“ZZ=-FnA-H “EENFRA-H 0.82E T

21st October 2004 20th October 2010 HK$0.65
“EEMETAZT-B  ZE-EETAZTR 06581

3th February 2008 12th February 2014 HK$0.78

“EE\FATER CE-MECATCE 0T8ER

BRAETE
BE-_ET-_F+_ARBAETERER
ZERESE  AQARZESEAMA
BREE (BENTES) RERBAL
Ak 2R ([BERE]) - RAEE @
A EREZHOT

Number of Share Options

EREHA
2008 2007
25,500,000 28,500,000
1,500,000 —
(3,200,000) —
— (3,000,000)
23,800,000 25,500,000

RZZEZNFRAA=ZTEREERE
B RTTEBRFEMT

Number of shares

subject to the options

BRETRRER
2008 2007
15,000,000 15,000,000
1,500,000 1,500,000
5,800,000 6,000,000
— 3,000,000
1,500,000 —

23,800,000 25,500,000



Share option scheme (Cont'd)

Options granted are exercisable within a period of six years within which

there is a total vesting period of three years. Commencing from the first,

second and third anniversaries of the offer date of an option, the relevant

grantee may exercise up to 33%, 67% and 100% respectively of the shares

comprised in his or her option. The Group has no legal or constructive

obligation to repurchase or settle the options in cash.

The fair value of these options is to be expensed over the vesting period and

the amount recognised for the year was HK$ 115,000 (2007: HK$103,000).

The fair values of options granted under the share option scheme determined

using the Binomial Option Pricing Model were as follows:

Date of grant of share option

REBRERS

Average fair value of share options

at date of grant

Significant inputs into the
valuation model:

Exercise price

Share price at grant date

Expected volatility
Risk-free interest rate

Expected life of options

Expected dividend yield

30th April

2003

—EE=F

MA=1H

R A HERE HK$0.267

ZFHRTFE 02877

HEER 2

EABAYE

1B HK$0.82

082371

IR B8 RE HK$0.82

08277

BHKE 65%

ERBHEX 2.84%

BREREANE 6 years

[3:d

BEREER 6%

The expected volatility measured at the standard deviation of expected share

price returns is based on the 6-year historical share price movement of the

Company prior to the option grant date.

BREE (2
REBREIRAFATE 2B
BREANBEN=FFE - BEARA
AREREBNEHNE - F_RE
“RFEREBETEARNAEZRED
Z=t=Z BAZATERESZ—A
MERBRE AKETELIEIETE
BEENReBEREEBARE -

AEBHRXHRNFERROIEERE
REATESLEAR1150008T(ZFF
+% 1 103,000 L) °

ER-AANETERABERERER
Bt ARL BB AFENT

2nd May 21st October [3th February
2003 2004 2008
—ZR=F —ZEIMF —EERNE
RAAZB  tAZt-H ZBt+=H
HK$0.286 HK$0.200 HK$0.277
0.286 %L 0.200%7T 027787
HK$0.82 HK$0.65 HK$0.78
082 8T 0.65 8T 0.78 &7
HK$0.82 HK$0.65 HK$0.72
082 %L 065 AT 07287
65% 55% 66%

2.72% 2.59% 1.99%

6 years 6 years 6 years
6% 6% 6%

6% 5% 6%

EREAREQFNEEZMAENE
MEHRE REBE FEAREN

Bt DMEtE -



(a) Group a) £E

Other reserves

AR
Capital
Share reserve Exchange
option (note (i))  Revaluation  fluctuation Retained
reserve SRR reserve reserve Sub-total earnings Total

BRERE (W)  EfERR EXRDER Mt REEA 3]
HKS000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$'000
tér  TEx  TEx  TEx  TEx  TER  TER

At lst July 2007 RZZ2LELR-A 7011 408 2105 15,070 U614 2333% 258010
Currency translation differences EiEE — - - 26956 2695 - 2695
Profit for the year KE&T - - - - — 24193 1193
Employees share options scheme: EEERESE
~ value of employee services -EERKER 5 — — — 115 — 15
- exercise of share options -TeEkiE (661) — = — (661) — (661)
200612007 final dvidend paid IH=%%5/25%¢
EERBRE - — - - — (3,600) (3,600)
2007/2008 interim dividend paid ANZERt/ZEEN
ERPERS - - - — — (3692) (3692)
At 30th June 2008 RZZENERA=TH 6475 408 2015 4026 S04 250297 3013
Representing: R&:
Proposed 2007/2008 BE-33t/
final dividend “ZE\EERERE 3692
Others i 246605

250297



(a) Group (Contd)

At Tst July 2006

Currency translation differences

Revaluation of property, plant
and equipment on transfer
to investment properties

Profit for the year

Employees share options scheme:

- Forfeiture of share options
- value of employee services

2005/2006 final dividend paid

2006/2007 interim dividend paid

At 30th June 2007

Representing:
Proposed 2006/2007

final dividend
Others

Share

option

reserve

BRERE

HK$000

T

RZFERELA-R 7

EREE -
REZREY

ELEE WA E S

BERERE -
AERH -
EEBERENE

- BREfEE (859)

-EERBEE 103
*M=%%5/233K

EERBRSE —
%f=%%x/2%%

ERRERE -
RZZRLE AZTH 70
f%:

BE-5E/

“ERLERRBRE

it

Capital
reserve
(note (i))
LEN i
(H&E (i)
HK$'000
TR

408

408

a) KE#)

Other reserves

bRt
Exchange
Revaluation  fluctuation
reserve reserve
Eftfifs EXRBRE
HK$'000 HK$'000
T TER
— 9926
— 5,144
2115 —
LI15 5,070

Sub-total
St
HK$'000
TEn
18111
5,144

24614

Retained

earnings

RERA
HK$'000

TEn

224761

14975

859

(3,600)

(3,600)

2333%

3,600
29.7%

2333%

Total

BE
HK$'000
TEn

242873
5144

2115
14975

103

(3,600)

(3,600)

258010



Company

At Ist July 2007

Profit for the year

Employees share options scheme:
- value of employee services

— exercise of share options
2006/2007 final dividend paid

2007/2008 interim dividend paid

At 30th June 2008
Representing;

Proposed 2007/2008 final dividend

Others

At Ist July 2006

Profit for the year

Employees share options scheme:
— forfeiture of share options

— value of employee services
2005/2006 final dividend paid

200612007 interim dividend paid

At 30th June 2007

Representing;
Proposed 2006/2007 final dividend

Others

R-ZZ+E+A—H
REFH
[E BB RET 2
-EERKER
*ﬁﬁ%%%
FZFER/

:??ti&*%%%

23t/

“ET\ERTHRE

R-FFNFRA=TH
K&
BE-TEL/

“ZT\EEARIRE

2t

RZEE F+LA—H
AERF
[EEERETE -

~ B

-EERBEER

“T%R/

“EEREERERE
SN-FER/
“ETLEERERS
e L R
RE

m:TEA/

“ERLERARERE
Efty

Contributed
surplus
(note (ii))
BE4RE
(Bt &E (i)
HK$’ 000
TER
62511

62511

62511

62511

Other reserves

Rtbffs

Share option

reserve

BREGRE
HK$'000
TER
7021

115
(661)

6475

1771

(859)
103

7021

Sub-total
Nt
HK$'000
TER

69,532

115
(661)

68,986

70,288

(859)
103

69,532

Retained
earnings
REERN
HK$°000
TR
4329
6,756

(3.600)

(3692)

3793

3692
101

3,793
3,751
6919

859

(3,600)

(3.600)

4329

3,600
729

4329

Total

hE
HK$'000
TiEx
73861
6756

115
(661)

(3,600)

(3692)

72,779

74,039

6919

103

(3,600)

(3,600)

73861



Note:

Capital reserve of the Group of HK$408,000 (2007: HK$408,000) represents the
aggregate amount of the non-voting deferred shares of Ngai Hing Hong Plastic
Materials Limited and the difference between the nominal amount of the share
capital issued by the Company in exchange for the aggregate nominal amount of
the share capital of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the group reorganisation

in 1994 (the “Reorganisation”).

Contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference between the
consolidated shareholders’ funds of Ngai Hing (International) Company Limited at
the date on which the Reorganisation became effective and the nominal amount
of the Company's shares issued under the Reorganisation. At Group level the
contributed surplus is reclassified into its components of reserves of the

underlying subsidiaries.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, contributed surplus is distributable
to shareholders, subject to the condition that the Company cannot declare or pay
a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if (i) it is, or after the
payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due, or (ii) the realisable
value of its assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its

issued share capital and share premium account.

M

(i)

(ii)

X & B 2B KXR B AR
408,000/ 7 (ZZ T+ : 408,000/
T NREZBERHERAR ZERER
BEERNBERN - NNTFART
BEEEEA(EA)) BTZREAE
EARBARENB LRz RATES
BEMEZZHE -

ARAEZEHBH - JINgai
(International) Company Limited FA Z 48
EMBBZEERFESBARAIRE
BHMBETCRNEEREZEZE - &
SECEARBDNENBEAEBENBA
Bl REHRER -

Hing

BEBRE-NAN-FRAZE (BE
i) BESASUNKTERE  BEE
AEEHRENARRKMNREHIEL
ERNRERGEIBEFERLIH 28
B HNARABEZAEREEEHRA
MERE R EREE HTRA BRI
BzEE NZARAMEEIRIKNR
BANEZBHRPELDIK -



Non-current borrowings
Long-term bank loans - secured
Less: Non-current borrowings

— current portion

Obligations under finance leases
Less: Obligation under finance

leases — current portion

Current borrowings
Short-term bank loans - secured

Trust receipt loans - secured

Bank advances for discounted bills (note 23)

Long-term bank loans - secured
— current portion
Obligations under finance leases

— current portion

Total borrowings

FRBEE
EHRTER-EEH
o ERBEE

— B8 E 1
MEMERHE
B BMAEHEEE
— BERER (D
REEE

RHRITER - FHEM
ERREEN -FHA
RITHRREBR (M5 23)

RHROTER-BER
—ENERER 1
BEHEEME
— BB

2008
HK$’000
TER

8,523

(2,000)

6,523

5,507

(2,764)

2,743

9,266

48,942
140,451
10,563

199,956

2,000

2,764

204,720

213,986

Group
&8

2007
HK$'000
TET

11,247

(5711

5536

5536

40,660
116,718
7,083

164,461

5711

170,172

175,708



The carrying amounts of the Group'’s borrowings approximate their fair values, ER EABEREATERSE  UUT

and are denominated in the following currencies: NEBRELML -
Group
£H
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TET
HKD BT 145,959 127,964
RMB AR 54,767 34,484
usD e 13,260 13260
213,986 175,708
At 30th June 2008, the Group's bank borrowings are wholly repayable within RZZFZENFRA=1TH  AEENR
five years and are repayable as follows: TEEHFRAFRER  &F3WT
Bank borrowings
RITHEE
2008 2007
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TET
Within | year —FR 201,956 164,461
Between | to 2 years —FEMF 6,523 —

208,479 164,461



The Group's finance lease obligations are analysed as follows:

ig

=

Total minimum lease payments: RIEHEERE

Within | year
Between | to 2 years

Between 3 to 5 years

Future finance charges on finance leases
Present value of obligations under finance leases

The present value of obligation under finance lease payments is as follows:

Within | year
Between | to 2 years

Between 3 to 5 years

—FR
—EERE
—FERF

BEREZRRUMBER

BEMEEEZRE

—FR
—FEMF
=FE2hF

AEBZBERERENMAT :

Finance lease obligations

MERERR
2008 2007
HK$000 HK$'000
TERT TET
2,899 6,188
2,103 2,985
713 2922
5,715 12,095
(208) (848)
5,507 11,247
REHEEFBECRENT
2008 2007
HK$000 HK$'000
THERT THET
2,764 5711
2,048 2,744
695 2792
5,507 11,247



The exposure of the Group's borrowings to interest rate changes and the

weighted average interest rates at the balance sheet date are as follows:

— at fixed rates

— at floating rates

Obligations under finance leases

Trust receipt loans

Short-term and long-term
bank loans

Bank advances for

discounted bills

Bank borrowings are secured by certain property, plant and equipment (note

16), leasehold land and land use rights (note 17) and investment properties

(note 18) of the Group.

The bank advances for discounted bills with recourse have been accounted for
as collateralised bank advances. The discounted bills receivables and the related
proceeds of the same amount are included in the Group's trade and bills

receivables as at the balance sheet date (note 23).

MEMERME
EREEER
e E R R
RITEK
RAT

EEES S

~ B
~ 287

HKD

3.25%
3.29%

i

+

4

_}

2008
RMB
AR®

6.87%

6.80%

6.35%

REERBRATEEZERYMEE
PR RINEFHFEMT -

Group
%
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TET
199,956 164,461
14,030 11,247
213,986 175,708
2007
HKD RMB usb
BT ARE e
5.75% — —
5.38% — —
— 549% 5.16%
— 4.56% —

BOEFATEERLODE - BER
i (FieE1e) ~ MEL Rt iEmE
(W&17) BB MmE (KE18) REM -

WHERECRAZTBERERTRITME
RITEFENBERENRITER - R
BERBRRAMSHRAZTRERNERAL

RERRE (E23) -

RERSHERRAREZE SRR



Deferred income taxes are calculated in respect of temporary differences

under the liability method using the tax rates enacted or substantively enacted

by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable

right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the

deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. The following

amounts, determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown in the balance

sheet:

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax liabilities

The net movement on the deferred tax account is as follows:

At beginning of the year

(Credited)/charged to income

statement (note 10)

At end of the year

F1

'wWEx GtA) /S

Mex (BHIEE10)

FR

2008
HK$’000
TER

(5.618)
2,680

(2,938)

2008
HK$°000
TERT

2,816

(5,754)

(2,938)

ELAMEHIEARNA

i/i'/v
0 >+

HERHHE

BLEmMmOBRENRBEENERER

o

EELEANHTENSRENBREESR
RAERRAELE BETABRIR
Rl - EE - A RETEREREE
HEETHAEH - EFABEEER
THEBNEEREBERAIE :

2008
HK$’000
TER

Company

AL
2007
HK$'000
TRET

BRREMGHERNZEFMT

Group
%8
2007
HK$'000
TR
(527)
3,343
2816
Group
%8
2007
HK$'000
TET
1,073
1,743
2816

2008
HK$°000
TERT

Company

A
2007
HK$'000
TET

(24)

24



The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year, without

taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within the same tax

jurisdiction, are as follows:
(a) Group

Deferred tax liabilities:

properties depreciation Total
REMENDTEUS MERBHE ag
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008
HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$°000 HK$:000 HK$°000
TERL TAT TR TR TR
At beginning of the year £ 1,083 1,008 2,246 2,673 3,329
Charged / (credited) to EsERNR/
income statement (5t A) 1,337 75 (1,207) (427) 130
At end of the year EX 2,420 1,083 1,039 2,246 3,459
Deferred tax assets: BEHAAE :
Decelerated
Provisions Tax losses tax depreciation
3 REER AERKTE
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TRz TERL TEn TEL TEn TEL TEL
At beginning of the year 4] 513 594 = 2014 = — 513
Credited/(charged) to sz
income statement A/ (8) 2009 (81) 1,303 (2014) 231 — 5,884
At end of the year EX 2 53 1,303 - 2372 - 6,397

Fair value

gains on investment

FRECHREERARE
BEER 2 BREHE) BT

(a) %E

ELEHBEAR

Accelerated tax

&h
=

(E2[F—

2007
HK$'000
L

3,681

(352)

3329

Total

4%
2007
HK$:000
TEn

2,608

(20%)

513



(®)

Company

Deferred tax assets:

At beginning of the year F1)
Charged to income statement EWERMR
At end of the year FR

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carry forward to the
extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through the future
taxable profits is probable. At 30th June 2008, the Group had
unrecognised tax losses to be carried forward against future taxable
income amounted to HK$17,836,000 (2007: HK$17,025,000). These tax
losses have no expiry date except that HK$1,945,000 (2007:
HK$869,000) will expire in 2013. The potential deferred tax assets in
respect of these tax losses which have not been recognised amounted to

HK$3,108,000 (2007: HK$3,032,000).

(b)

A

EREMEEE :
Tax losses
BEER
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FHET
— 24
= (24)

BB RTS8 M R AR E AT
BHEEERRNEBIBBENESE
B BARERT RN BRI
DoRZTENFARA=ZTH &K
SEWER A A K AR ER
Bz M % 851817,836,000/ 1T
(ZZZTLF 17,025,000 T) #
R JE ST AT 15 4 & 3,108,000/ 7T
(ZZZT+% :3,032,000%7T) °
RZE-ZFIHHOBRBEER
1,945,000 T (Z T T £ & -
869,000/ 7T) °



Operating profit
Adjustments for:
— Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
— Loss/(gain) on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
— Amortisation of leasehold land and
land use rights
— Amortisation of intangible assets
— Unrealised fair value loss/(gain) on

derivative financial instruments

— forward contracts: held for trading
— Fair value gains on investment properties

— Gain on disposal of an investment property

— Gain on disposal of a business

— Negative goodwill arising from acquisition of

additional interests in a subsidiary
— Share-based compensation expenses
— Impairment of receivables
— Provision/(reversal of provision) for
impairment of inventories
Changes in working capital:
— Inventories
—Trade and bills receivables,
other receivables,
prepayments and deposits
—Trade payables, other payables and

deposits received and accruals

Cash generated from operations

-Nx  BERRBFE

—HENE  BERREZ
B/ ()
—THE 3ty %+ 3h {0 FA A 2 8

—BVEEHRE
~TESBMTIAZRER
AFEER/ (Kaa)
—BRHIAH  BHEEER
-~ REMEN D FERR
-~ HEREMFE K
- hEXB NS
— BB -MELRER
FELEZARmE
— iR RERNMSER
— RWFRE
—FEREERE
B/ (BE)
ZEEH
-FE
—BEFRKH N R EE
Hip YR - AR
Pi8:7%n
—EHRMNF - EtEATR
BEKFIE RERER

RexXBEEZHE

2008
HK$’000
TER

42,797

15,266
34
414

800

50
(8,477)
(443)
(13,235)

15

949

1,044

(38,796)

37,225

(28,354)

9,389

Group
&8

2007
HK$'000
TET

29,117

16,097

(14)

403

(999)
(426)

(2273)
103
883

(600)

(14,267)

(33,777)

35,507

29,754



In the cash flow statement, proceeds from sales of property, plant and

equipment comprise:

Net book amount (note 16)
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property,

plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property,

plant and equipment

BREFE (R 16)
HEME - BERRE
2 (B8 /e

% - BER
REFENR

In the cash flow statement, proceeds from disposal of a business comprise:

Consideration

Carrying amount of assets held for sale
at the date of disposal:
— Property, plant and equipment
— Cash and cash equivalents
Costs directly attributable to the disposal

Minority interests written back on disposal

Gain on disposal of a business

Net proceeds from disposal of business:
Consideration settled in cash
Cash and cash equivalents disposed
Costs directly attributable to the disposal

Deposit received in previous year

RIE

BEHEBENHERZ
FREE :
—ME - BERRE
- RePREFE
ARLEZERRA
HEXB 2 P BB RELD RO

HERB W

HEXBHREHFE
NH e WE 2 RE
HEREIREFH
ARLESIBZERERA
NEFERR AT ®

ERERERN HEWE  BERR
(iXoliR g Kk A
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
TE&T THT
127 I
(34) 14
93 25

ERSRRRA - HE LS RAN
mT
2008

HK$°000
TET

43,112

6,702
14,561
4,226
4,388

29,877

13,235

43,112
(14,561)

(4.226)
(20,600

3,725



(a)  Capital commitments (a) BEAHAE

At 30th June 2008, the Group had the following capital commitments for RZZEENFAR=+H ' &x5&H

addition of property, plant and equipment: BBRNE BERIEZERTEE
mr

2008 2007

HK$’000 HK$'000

TER TET

Contracted but not provided for BEKNBRER 7,236 6,863

Authorised but not contracted for EREEREN = —

7,236 6,863

(b)  Commitment under operating leases b) AELHEAE
As at 30th June 2008, the Group had future aggregate minimum lease RZZEZENFRA=1TAH  x&E
payments under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of land and AERTIIHEESH s Al L RiE
buildings as follows: FZAAHEREREZRKRD
MER

2008 2007

HK$°000 HK$'000

TER TET

Not later than one year —FR 8,910 2,630

Later than one year and —FREMENRDF

not later than five years 16,637 3,079
Later than five years FRFHR 295 97

25,842 5,806



The Group is controlled by Good Benefit Limited, a company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands, which owns 53.3% of the Company's shares. The
remaining 46.7% of the shares were widely held. Substantially all of the shares
of Good Benefit Limited are beneficially owned by certain directors of the

Company.

All Directors of the Company are regarded as the key management of the
Group and details of compensation paid to them are disclosed in note 15 to

the consolidated financial statements.

The Directors are of the opinion that no other material related party

transactions had been undertaken by the Group during the year.

The Directors regard Good Benefit Limited, a company incorporated in the

British Virgin Islands, as being the ultimate holding company.

REE B Good Benefit Limited (FEH B
BLEESHMKL AR EH - HEE
ARNBBENZRETZB=RE  E#p2
BAZOT A ELtREAEZRE -
Good Benefit LimitedE & X35 ik i
AARRIZBNESTERFA °

ARBIMBEEIRBEAEAEE EE
EBEANE EFAHFNCREA KR
R 15HE -

ESRRAKERAFENY ES2EH
HEXBREALRS °

EERABARDAREER D F AGood
Benefit Limited (E £ B Z B & A&
MZARA]) e



The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2008:

Name

2R

Ngai Hing (International)
Company Limited
(note a) (fi3ta)

Dongguan Ngai Hing Plastic
Materials Ltd.

REREZBRHY
BERAE

Hong Kong Colour
Technology Limited
ABEXARAT

Ngai Hing Engineering
Plastic Materials Limited
RETREHERADH

Place of

incorporation/
operation and

*kind of legal

entity

AR R
R*EANER

British Virgin Islands
RERAHE

The PRC
* wholly foreign

-owned enterprise
HE
OEEELE

Hong Kong
BE

Hong Kong
BE

Issued and

fully paid

up share capital/
registered capital
BRI
BERE/ ERER

US$100
100 X7

HK$93,200,000
93,200,000 8 7T

500,000
ordinary shares
of HK$ I each
500,000 & & Ak
gik1ET

2,000,000

ordinary shares of
HKS$ 1 each
2,000,000 & sk
BiR1ET

RZZTZNEFRA=ZTH  ARAIZF

EWBRAMT

Principal activities

TEXH

Investment holding

REER

Manufacture and sale of
colorants and compounded
plastic resins
HERHEECAR
EEAMEE

Manufacture and trading of
colorants and compounded
plastic resins
BERRREEAR
BB AR

Manufacture of

engineering plastic

Effective
percentage of
equity held by
the Company

ENNCES L]

A {3 Nz
100

100

100

762



Name

a8

Ngai Hing Hong Plastic
Materials Limited

BREZBRHARDA

Ngai Hing Hong Plastic
Materials (Hong Kong)
Limited

REZBRE (FE)
BRAF

Shanghai Ngai Hing Plastic
Materials Co., Ltd.

LEREEBRH
BRAE

Tsing Tao Ngai Hing Plastic
Materials Co,, Ltd.

EEREEBRM
BRAF

Place of
incorporation/

operation and

Issued and

fully paid

*kind of legal up share capital/
entity registered capital
Gy RV -$:.k ERTK
R*EANER BERE/ EMES
Hong Kong 1,000
e ordinary shares of
HK$! each

1,000 & @R

BR1ET

500,000

non-voting deferred

shares of HK$ | each(note b)

500,000 i R 1E

ERERER 1T

Hong Kong 500,000
e ordinary shares of
HKS$ 1 each

500,000 BB ER 1787

The PRC HK$34,400,000

* wholly foreign

-owned enterprise
HE
OEBELE

The PRC
* wholly foreign

-owned enterprise
hE
BB ELE

34,400,000 & 7T

HK$ 10,500,000
10,500,000 & 7T

Principal activities

TEXHR

Investment holding and
property holding
REZBRR
RENE

Trading of plastic materials

EEZBRM

Manufacture and sale of
colorants and compounded
plastic resins
BERHEEEH
REGANEE

Manufacture and sale of
colorants and compounded
plastic resins
BERHEREH

L& €A R

Effective
percentage of
equity held by
the Company
ARRAFE

LEBRRAED L

100

(note b)

(FfEEb)

100

100

100



Name

a8

NHH Coltec Limited
(previously known as
Ngai Hing PlastChem Co,
Limited)
BREBZEBRAT]
(AZRBECERAR)

Ngai Hing Engineering
Plastic (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
BRETREH
(L&) ERRA

Tsing Tao Ngai Hing
Trading Co. Ltd

EERERE
BRAF

Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic
(Hong Kong) Limited

RETRER (BE)
BRAE

Place of

incorporation/
operation and

*kind of legal

entity
AR R R
R*EANER

Hong Kong
BE

The PRC
* wholly foreign

-owned enterprise
hE
EBEELE

The PRC
* wholly foreign

-owned enterprise
P E
*EBELE

Hong Kong
BE

Issued and

fully paid

up share capital/
registered capital
EBRITR
BERE/ZMER

2,000,000

ordinary shares of
HKS$ | each
2,000,000 & i@k
BiR1ET

US$200,000
200,000 7T

US$100,000
100,000 %7

1,000,000

ordinary shares of
HK$!1 each
1,000,000 & ik
BR1ET

Principal activities

TEXHR

Manufacture and sale of
plastic products
BER
HEEBEM

Trading of engineering
plastic products

EETRZBEM

Trading of plastic
materials and pigments
BEEER

RE R ER

Trading of engineering
plastic products

EETREBEM

Effective
percentage of
equity held by
the Company

AREHE
ZERBRAES L
100

762

100

762



Name

a8

NHH International
Trading Limited
REBREZERAA

Xiamen Ngai Hing Hong
Plastic Materials Co. Ltd

EFIRETEBRH
BRAE

Guangzhou Ngai Sog
Hing Trading Co. Ltd

BMMRZEE S
ARRA

Shanghai Ngai Sog Hing
Trading Co. Ltd
FEBBEBE

j:/\:!:

FHEBEERAA

NHH Biodegradable Plastics
Company Limited
BRERRENBRDA

Place of
incorporation/
operation and
*kind of legal
entity

AR AR R
R*EANEH

Hong Kong
BE

The PRC

* wholly foreign
-owned enterprise
HE
HINERELR

The PRC
* wholly foreign

-owned enterprise
hE
BB ELE

The PRC
* wholly foreign

-owned enterprise
P E
IEBERE

Hong Kong
B

Issued and

fully paid

up share capital/
registered capital
BEBRITR
BERE/GMER

2,000,000
ordinary shares of
HK$! each
2,000,000 & i@k
Bk 1ET

US$200,000
200,000 E 7T

RMB5,000,000
5,000,000 A R B

US$400,000
400,000 £ 7T

10,000

ordinary shares of
HK$!1 each
10,000 & @&
BR1ET

Principal activities

TEXHR

Trading of plastic
materials and pigments
BEEZR
RRRER

Manufacture and sale of
colorants and compounded
plastic resins
HERHEEEAR
BB A

Trading of plastic materials

EEZBRHM

Trading of plastic materials

EBEPBRM

Manufacture and sale of
biodegradable plastic

materials

Effective
percentage of
equity held by
the Company
ARRAFE

LEBRRAED L

60

100

100

100

60



Notes:

(@)

Other than Ngai Hing (International) Company Limited, which is directly held by
the Company, all the principal subsidiaries listed above are indirectly held by the
Company.

The holders of the non-voting deferred shares in Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Materials
Limited ("NHH") shall not be entitled to any participation in the profits or
surplus assets of NHH and they are not entitled to receive notice of or attend or
vote at any general meeting of NHH in respect of their holdings of such deferred

shares.

Ngai Hing (International) Company Limited has been granted an option by the
holders of the non-voting deferred shares to acquire these shares for an

aggregate cash consideration of HK$4.

The above table includes the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of
the Directors, principally affected the results of the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group.To give details of other subsidiaries would,

in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

PEE

(a)

(b)

(c)

FrE L5z £ EM B A FKRNgai Hing
(International) Company Limited/ 7%
AREERAN AR REMEER
5o

REBBREMARAR ([RA])ERR
BREERND 2 BAAERZERE )G
MEFIBEENR - TEEREFHALZ
EERDUBRBEBRASBEXLE
REABRRAEINEG LEE -

Ngai Hing (International) Company
Limited AR & @R EBAE TR EIRRIE

LR FEAREATBEZS RN 2
BIRE -

ITRIMEERRYELFERRBRNE
EYEIBNAGEEEFEC IR
DZARRAMBAT - EERRMET
HMBARZHFe<cERBRT
Ko
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Five year Financial Summary

HEFEPBEHRE

The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years are as

ARERBELEMBEFRECRE BENA

follows: BWT
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT TET FET TR TET
(Restated)
(Z31)
Results ES
Profit attributable to equity 73 ) IR 5 FE {7 ' 7
holders of the Company 24,193 14,975 7,082 14,951 13,279
Assets and liabilities BEEREE
Total assets BEME 764,431 712,049 649,568 679,194 536,655
Total liabilities BRMEE (346,327) (352,984) (301,320) (339,923) (241,657)
Minority interests DER R R (17,397) (7,444) (11,764) (10,194) (8,814)
Capital and reserves DA R A
attributable to the PR R A
Company's equity holders 400,707 351,621 336,484 329,077 286,184
Since the year ended 30th June 2006, the Group has adopted the new/revised ~ AKBBEZZTZAENA=THIEFERE

standards and interpretations of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards which

were mandatory for the Group'’s accounting periods beginning on or after Ist July

2005. The figures as at and for the year ended 30th June 2005 have been restated as

required. Figures as at and for the year ended 30th June 2004 have not been

adjusted as it is not practicable to restate the figures of earlier years for comparison

purpose.

BB —ZTRFLA-HAZRARNE:
MR URRM 2L/ BETEBRBRE &
kel HE_TTAF A=THLHFE

ZEFERERATES - BE

—TEMFERA

STRLEFEZHEFURAR - BBEIIAES

B EFMELBL AT o



NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Materials (Hong Kong) Limited
Hong Kong Colour Technology Limited

NHH Coltec Limited

Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic Materials Limited
Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic (Hong Kong) Limited
NHH Biodegradable Plastics Co., Ltd.

Hong Kong Office:

Unit 3, 6th Floor, Hopeful Factory Centre
10 Wo Shing Street

Fotan, New Territories

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2693 1663

Fax: (852) 2694 0877

Website: http://www.nhh.com.hk

E-mail address: info@nhh.com.hk

Hong Kong Factory:

|7 Dai Fu Street

Tai Po Industrial Estate

Tai Po, New Territories

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2660 0208/2693 1772
Fax: (852) 2667 4831/2694 0017

Dongguan Factory:

Chi Ling Industrial Zone, Hou Jie Town
Dongguan City

Guangdong Province

The People’s Republic of China

Tel: (86) 769-8558 8755 Zip: 523940
Fax: (86) 769-8558 1756

Guangzhou Office:

A1806 Center Plaza

No. 163 Linhe Road West

Tianhe District

Guangzhou

The People’s Republic of China

Tel: (86) 20-3831 0226 Zip : 510620
Fax: (86) 20-3831 0223

Company Directory
NEERE

RETERAF
(REREZMELZ ERAA)
REBBREH (FR)RRALF
BREXFRAF
REEERRAF
REAIRENERAF
REIREN(FR)RRAF
RERRERBRLT

BERPEE

&

RN

REEHT 105
BEIRDLEIE

T 5E 1 (852) 2693 1663

fBE : (852) 2694 0877

A3+ http:/;www.nhh.com.hk
EFE AL ¢ info@nhh.com.hk

BERL

A

RKIE

RBTEE

REHIT%

FiE ¢ (852) 2660 0208/2693 1772
BE : (852) 2667 4831/2694 0017

RERIL

i AR AME

BRA

el

BHEREIXR

T ih 1 (86) 769-8558 8755 EHARSE : 523940
BHE : (86) 769-8558 1756

BMNRERE

hEARENE

BN

A&

MAE B 1635

R EIR E A 1806

T &5 1 (86) 20-3831 0226 BB 1 510620
BE : (86) 20-3831 0223
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Company Directory
NAEEE

Shanghai Office:

Unit E, 16th Floor

Zhao Feng Universe Building

No.1800 Zhongshan West Road
Shanghai

The People's Republic of China

Tel: (86) 21-6440 0997  Zip: 200235
Fax: (86) 21-6440 0977

Shanghai Factory:

No. 8100, Songze Ave.

Qingpu Industrial Zone

Shanghai

The People's Republic of China

Tel: (86) 21-6921 3333 Zip: 201700
Fax: (86) 21-6921 5555

Qingdao Factory:

Haier (Jiao Zhou) International Industrial Zone

Jiao Zhou, ECO & TEC Development Zone, Qingdao

The People's Republic of China
Tel: (86) 532-8727 3100 Zip: 266300
Fax: (86) 532-8727 3110

Chengdu Office:

2nd Floor, Huaxia Building

No.3 North Jianshe Road Section 3
Chengdu City, Sichuan Province

The People's Republic of China

Tel: (86) 28-8328 5026  Zip: 610051
Fax: (86) 28-8328 5126

Xiamen Factory:

I/F, J-7 Building, Yongquan Industrial Park,
Guankou Town, Jimei District,

Xiamen City, Fujian Province,

The People's Republic of China

Tel: (86) 592-6093211  Zip: 361023
Fax: (86) 592-6093600

LBRER

hEE AR HAME

i

AR LI B 18005

KERIFKE

| 6IEERE

EiE ¢ (86) 21-6440 0997 EEURSE ¢ 200235
{EE : (86) 21-6440 0977

LERE

REARENE

Lgm

ERIXER

#E K388 1005%

EiE ¢ (86) 21-6921 3333 BHRSR : 201700
BE : (86) 21-6921 5555

EESHiL

hEARKEANE

EERBMNRERMHAZE

AR BN ERIEXE

T &% ¢ (86) 532-8727 3100 EEARSE 1 266300
fBH : (86) 532-8727 3110

REBRER

RE AR AME

m)lE k& T

BRIEE=B=%

EEAEZ#

T ih ¢ (86) 28-8328 5026 BHARHE : 610051
BE : (86) 28-8328 5126

BRI

R A RHEME

BEAEMM

EXEEASE

BRIER-7TBE (118)

B 5 (86) 592-6093211 BHRSE : 361023
BE : (86) 592-6093600
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